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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock C_Ommer'cial Bank
Statement of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank (“th'e Bank”) presents this
statement and the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its sub51d1anes
(collectively referred to as “SHB”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 : '

The Board of Management of the Bank is responsible for the prepa:ation and fair presentation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for credit institutions-stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and
the relevant statutory requirements applicable to f1nane1a1 reporting. In the opinion of the Board of
Management:

(a) the consolidated financial statements set ocut on pages 5 to 82 give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of SHB as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated results of
operations and the consolidated cash flows of SHB for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standard, the Vietnamese Accounting System for credit institutions -
stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to

- financial reporting; and :

_(b)  at the date of this statement, there are no reasons for the Board of Management o beheve that '
SHB will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Management has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying consohdated'
f1nanc1al statements for issue.

'. Chtef Executive Officer

Hanoi, 20 March 2019
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KPMG Limited

To the Shareho!ders

46" Floor, Keangnam Landmark 72 .~
E6 Pham Hung Road, Me Tri Ward
South Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam -
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Salgon Hanon Jomt Stock Commercial Bank : B

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Saigon -
Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank (“the Bank®) and its subsidiaries (coliectively .
referred to as "SHB"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at-31 -
December 2018, the related consolidated statements of.income and cash flows . for -

‘the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for

issue by the Bank’s Board of Management on 20 March 2019 as setoyton pages 5

-to 82

: Management’s Flesponsmlllty

The Banks Board of Management is responable for the preparatlc:-n and falr
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with

Vietnamese Accounting Standard, the Vietnamese Accounting System for credit

institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietham and the relevant etatutory'
reguiremants applicable to financial reporting, and for such internal control as the .

. 'Board of Management determines is necessary to-enable the preparation of the
- gonsolidated financial statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether

due to fraud or error.

~ Auditor’s aesponsibilit'y -

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply. with ethical

* requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
o whether the consolldated fmanmal statements are free of material mlsstatement

An audit mvolves performmg procedures to obtain aUd|t evidence about the amounts -
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the

“auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material mlsstatement'

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those rlsk '
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparanon

‘and fair- presentation of the financial statements in.order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thé purpose of expressing an’

“opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. An audit also includes -

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

. of accounting estimates made by the Bank’s Board of Management, as weII as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. :

: We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is- suf‘hcuent anhd approprlaie to

prnwdeabasns forc-ur audit. oplnlon S S P

" KPMG Limited, a Vistnarmese ong mernbar (mited liability company and ’ . ) : ' . 3

a member firm of the KPMG natwork of independent member firms
affilizted with KFMG Intemational Cooperative {"KPMG Internarmnal"]
a Swizs lanm:.I .



o KPMG Limited

Auditor’s Opinioh

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all matenial
respects, of the consolidated financial position of Saigen - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial.
Bank and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2018 and of their consolidated results of
operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit
Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory reqmrements
applicable to fina nC|aI reportlng . :

Emphasis of Matters

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 4(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which describes specific accounting policies regarding allowance for credit risks
relating to outstanding financial debts in accordance with the Scheme for "Merging Hanoi
Building Commercial Joint Stock Bank into Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commerciat Bank
for the period from 2016 to 2020” (“the Scheme”). For the outstanding financial debts,
mainly fram Hanoi Building Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("HBB"), the Bank has been
approved by the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV") to adopt specific accounting policies based
on the solutions for financial treatments proposed in the amended Scheme approved by
the State Bank of Vietnam on 8 Novemnber 2018. For these outstanding financial debts, the
Bank is allowed to allocate allowance for credlt risks in accordance with the roadmap: as
determined in the Scheme :

Other matter : _
The consolidated financial statements of SHB for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
audited by another firm of auditors whose audit report dated 6 April 2018 expressed an

unqualified audit opinion on those statements with emphasis of matters on the adoption of
the specific accounting policies for outstanding financial debts.

ek

Dam Xuan Lam Tran Dinh Vinh

Practicing Auditor Registration Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No.: 0861-2018-007-1 Certificate No.: 0339-2018-007-1
Deputy General Director

Hanoi, 20 March 2019



Saigon - Hanei Joint Stock Commercial Bank
Neo. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Conselidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018

I
I
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ASSETS
Cash and gold on hand
Balances with the State Banks

Balances with and loans to other credit
institutions

Balances with other credit institutions
Loans to other credit institutions

Secaurities held for trading
Securities held for trading
Allowance for securities held for trading

Derivatives and other financial assets

Loans to customers
Loans to customers
Allowance for loans to customers

Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Allowance for investment securities

Long-term investments

Other long-term investments

Allowance for diminution in the value of
long-term investments

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets

Cost .
Accumulared amortisation

Other assets

Receivables

Accrued interest and fee receivables
Other assets :
Allowance for other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

10
it

12
12
13

14

15

16

17

Form BO2/TCTD-HM

fIssued under Circular No.49%/2014-TT-NHENN
dared 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Vietnam)

31/12/2018 31/12.20107
¥YND miillion VND million
1,884,822 1,446,548
4,328,739 3,742,659
29,200,327 33,513,516
29,300,327 27,859,510
- 5,654,000
655 1,050
3,880 3,889
(3,234) (2,839)
58,228 136,265
213,986,652 195,441,551
216,988,881 198,290,566
(3,002,229 (2,849,015)
48,026,925 21,207,964
25,193,006 12,268,348
24,761,139 10,682,862
(1,927.220) (1,743,246)
195,767 215,465
201,750 227.250
(5,983) (11,783)
4,792,434 3,952,317
485,674 425,424
1,140,635 1011431
(654,961) {556,007)
4,306,760 3,526,803
4,544,660 3,738,489
(237,900) (211,596)
20,701,459 26,352,746
7,980,896 13,411,455
9,117,746 7,955,903
4,256,033 5,395,762
(653,216) (410,374}
323,276,008 286,010,081

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Form B02/TCTD-HN
{ Issued under Circidar No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
 dated 31 December 2014 of

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018

- OWNERS’ EQUITY

(c ontmu ed) . the State Bank of Vietmam)
Note . 31/12/2018 31/12/2017
_ o _ ' - VND million 'VND million .
B LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY |
LIABILITIES
I Amounts due to the Government and
the State Banks 18 12,211,237 . 2,758,343
II Deposits and borrowings from other -
credit institutions : 19 44,933,789 53,000,419
1 Deposits from other credit institutions 31,352,183 - 33,297,858
2 Borrowings from other credit institutions 13,581,606 19,702,561
Il Deposits from customers 20 225,224,141 194,889,770
\% Other borrowed and entrusted funds | 21 1,473,711 1,064,161
VI Valuable papers i_ssued 22 16,721,736 14,967,269
VII  Other liabilities . 23 6,378,862 4,638,899
1 ‘Accrued Interest and fee payables ' 5,294909 4,103,201
3 ~ Other liabilities. 1,083,953 535,698
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - 306,943,476 - 2?1,318,861
OWNERS’ EQUITY
VIII Owners’ capital and reserves 24 16,332,532 14,691,220
1 _ Capital 12,132,617 11,293,347
a Share capital 12,036,161 11,196,897
¢ Share premium 101,716 101,716
-d . Treasury shares (5,260) {5,.260)
2 Reserves . - 1,467,001 1,220,358
3 Foreign exchange differences (5,891) _ -
5 Retained earnings 2,738,805 2,177,515
'TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY 16,332,532 14,691,220
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND- 123.276,0 08 286,010,081

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



. Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

Form BO2/TCTD- E[N

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam  {Issued under C ircutar No49/2014-TT-NHNN
. - dated 31 December 2014 of

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018
: (conﬂnued) :

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

I CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

1 Loan guarantees
2 - Foreign exchange commitments -
Forward foreign currency purchase
commitments '

- Forward foreign currency sale commitments
. Swap commitments
4 - Letters of credit commitments
5 - Other guarantees

.. the State Bank of _Va‘emamj} :
3U122018 - 31122017 |
VND million YND I_nil]iong

16208 179,955
32,202,971 51,133,948
849,418 1,339,602
185,521 1,739,760
31,168,032 48,054.586
14,117,545 14,695,470
49,465,228

23,117,644

20 March 2019

Prepared by: Reviewed by

Ngo Thi Van
hzefALcountam

‘Nguyen Thi Lien
Head of Accounting
and General Aﬁas Y Departmenr

Ngo Thu Ha -

proved by:

Nguyen Van Le
Deputy Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Consolidated statement of income for the year

Form BO3/TCTD-HN
lssued under Circidar No 4920 14-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of

the State Bank of Viemam)

ended 31 December 2018
Note

1 Interest and similar income
2 Interest and similar expenses
1 Net interest income 20
3 Fee and commission income
4 Fee and cormission expenses
II Net fee and commission income 27
I Net gain from trading of foreign

CUrrencies - 28
v Net loss from trading securities
v Net gain from investment securities 29
5 Other income
6 Other expenses
V1 Net other income 30
VII  Income from capital contribution,

share purchases
VIII Operating expenses 31
X Net operating profit before allowance and

provision expenses
X Allowance and provision expenses
XI Profit before tax

(carried forward to next page)

2018 2017
VND million VND miillion

(Reclassified)
22,641,366 18,220,214
(17,085,464) (13,423,554)
5,555,902 4,796,660
822,989 1,526,170
(109,047 (69,305)
713,942 1,456,865
61,747 54,247
- (5,188}
277,881 1,650
251,134 359978
(121,073) (222,486}
130,061 137,492
2,202 2,816
(3,222,791) (2,629,858)
3,518,944 3,814,084
(1,425,091) (1,888,773)
2,093,853 1,925,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Saigon - Hanoi Jeint Stock Commercial Bank Form BO3/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam  (fssued under Circular No.49%2014-TT-NHNN -~

Consolidated statement of income for the year S o dazed 31 December 2014 of -
ended 31 December 2018 (continued) ' the §. e Bank of Vietnam) -
Note = 2018 2017

VYND million VND millicn

~ XI  Profit before tax

(brought forward from previous page) - 2’093f853 ' 1,925,311
7 - Income tax expense - turrcﬁt _ 32 (421,534) (386,183)
XII Income tax expense _ . 32 _ (421,534) _ (386,183)
'XIH_ Net profit after tax ' _ ' 1,672,319 1,539,128
Attributable to: - ) - ;
_ Net profit after tax of the Bank ' _ 1,672,319 1,539,128
XV Basic earnings per share (VNDfshare) | ' 13 o 1;390 _ 1,279
' . (restated) : , . .
20 March 2019
Prepared by: ' _ Reviewed by

Nguyen Tht Lien Ngo Thi Van | Ngo Thu Ha ~ == Nguyen Van Le
_ Head of Accounting Chief Accountant  Deputy Executive Oﬁ‘icer Ch;ef Execunve Off‘ cer
and General Affairs Department |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial siatements



Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Daco, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

-Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year

01
02
03
04
05
06

08

09

10

11
12

13
14

15

16

17
18
19
21

" ended 31 December 2018 (direct method)

CASH FLOWS FROM. OPERATING ACTIVI_TIES

Interest and similar income received
Interest and similar expenses paid

Net fee and commission income received
Net receipts from foreign currencies and
securities trading activities

Other income

- Proceeds from loans previously written off
07

Operating and salary expenses payments
Corporate income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets

- Decrease in balances with and loans to other credit

institutions :
Increase in securities held for trading

- Decrease/(increase) in derivatives and
‘other financial assets
~ Increase in loans to customers

Decrease in allowance for impairment
Decrease/{increase) in other assets

Changes in operéting liabilities

- Increase in amounts due to the Government and the

State Banks

(Decrease)/increase in deposits and borrowings from

other credit institutions

Increase in deposits from customers

Increase in valuable papers issued

Increase in other borrowed and entrusted funds

_ Inércaqe!(decrease) in operating’-liabilities

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Form BO4/TCTD-HN,
{issued under Circular No.492014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of _
the State Bank Qf Viemam)

2017

2018 _
VND million ~ VND million
21,461,219 18,142,807
(15.883.738) (12,551,520)
703,875 1,465,529
338,600 412.890
68,722 155,853
61339 16,912
(3,122,638) (2,771,257
(377.831) (268,304)
—
3,249,548 4,602,910
15,106,549 | 2,155,857
(27002935 - (3.009,463)
78,037 OL687)
(18,698,315) (35.914,379)
(731,038) (236,877)
5,672,935 (10,156,232)
9,452,894 . 185,923
(8,066,630) 19,690,987
30,334,371 - 28,313,552
- 1,754,467 1,199,594
409,550 255,274
514,213 (363,487)
2,073,646 6,631,972

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

10



Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock C.ominercial Bank : Form Bl]4,’TCTD HN -

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam ”5 sued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year _ dated 31 December 2014 of -

ended 31 December 2018 (direct method - continued) ' C the State Bank of V‘ema{"}
2018 2017 |

VND million  VND million
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i
01 Payments for purchases of fixed assets (172,681 (117,245) 5

02 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets ' 1,762 187,214 I
07 . Payments for investments in other entities . _ - (12,857) -
08 Collections on investments in other entities _ 13,363 o 15,000 ¢

© 09  Dividends and profit received from _ _
' long-term investments ' : 2,202 2,816 |

I NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING : B L
- ACTIVITIES o _ (155,354) - 74,928 -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' ; .
04 Dividends paid to shareholders, profits distributed o © (578) (330 .

IlI NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ' '
. ACTIVITIES (578) _ - (330)

IV NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR . 1917714 6,706,570
V CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R |
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 33,048,717 26,342,147 |
VII CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE - —
END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 34) | 34966431 33,048,717

20 March 2019 |
Prepared by: ' _ Reviewéd by * pproved by: - :

Nguyen Thi Lien Ngo Thi Van Ngo Thu H e Vanle
Head of Accounting Chief Accounranr Deputy Executive Officer Chzef Executive Officer
and Genemf Affairs Departiment . ' : :

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
. 11
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(b).

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank | _ Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements L : dated 31 December 2014 of

_ for the year ended 31 December 2018 = ) . the State Bank of Vietnam)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in comuncnon Wlth the aecompanymg
consolidated financial statements.

Reporting entity

- Incorporation and operation

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank (“the Bank™) is a commercial joint stock bank '
incorporated and registered in Vietnam. ' '

The Bank was established pursuant to the Banking License No. 0041/NH-GP issned by the State Bank

of Vietnam (“SBV”) on 13 November 1993 initially known as Nhon Ai Rural Commercial Joint Stock
Bank. The Bank was renamed as Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank under Decision No..
1764/QD-NHNN dated 11 September 2009 granted by the Governor of SBV. The Bank successfully
merged Hanoi Building Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("HBB") and Vinaconex — Viettel Finance oint
Stock Company (“VVF") into its operation in 2012 and 2017, rebpectlve]y, which is in line w1th the
Restructuring plan of the banking system of Vietnam. i

“The Bank currently operates under Business Registration Certificate No. 18002’;’8630 by the Hanm
- Department of Planning and Investment and was amended for the 26" time on 16 May 2018.

- The principal activities of the Bank are mobilising and receiving short, rnedmm and long-term deposit

funds from organisations and individuals; lending on a short, medium and long-term basis up to the
nature and ability of the Bank’s capital resources; conducting settlement and cash services and other
banking services as approved by SBV; making capital contributions, purchasing shares, 1nvesnng 1n
bonds and trading foreign currencies in accordance with the prowslons of law. -

Location and operation network

 The Bank’s Head Office is located at No.77 Tran Hung Dao; Hoan Kiem District, Hanol. As dt 31

(c)

“December 2018, the Bank had one (1) Head Offlce, fifty eight (58) branches and one hundred and

ninety six (196) transaction offices (31! 12/2017: 1 Head Office, 53 branches and 179 lransactlon
ofﬁces) :

| Subsndlarles

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had four (4) sub51d1ar1es as follows (31/12/2017: four (4)
subsidiaries): :

Company name S Naiure of Business % owned_by.é |
' ' ' the Bank

SHB Debt and Asset Management One Member S o o
Company Limited (“SHB AMC™) Debt and asset management 100%

SHB One Member Limited Finance Company

("SHBFCY  Banking/Finance 100%

12



@ .

~(b)

(c)

- (d)

~-As at 31 December 2018, SHB had 7, 546 employees (31/12/2017: 6,186 employees)

- are ‘prepared and presented in VND, rounded to the nearest million (“VND million”).

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank ' Form BﬂSfTCTD-Hl\J
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam {Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - dated 31 December 2014 of
" for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) '- - the State Bank of Vietam)
Company name . Nature of Business % owned by
. : ' the Bank
Sai Gon - Hanoi Bank Laos Limited (“SHB Laos”) Banking/Finance - 100%
- Sai Gon - Hanoi Bank Cambodia Limited - - '
(“SHB Ca.mbodla”) o _ Banking/Finance 100%
Number of employees

Basis of preparatlon of the consolidated interim financnal statements

Statement of compliance

'The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting

Standard, the Vietnamese Accounting System for credit institutions stipulated by the SBV and the

relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting. These standards and statutory

requirements may differ, in some material respects, from International Financial Reporting Standards
as well as generally accepted accounting principles and standards of other countries. Accordingly, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present SHB’s financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
practices in countries or jurisdictions other than Vietnam. Furthermore, their utilisation is not designed
for those who are not informed about Vietnam’s accounting principles, procedures and practices
applicable to credit institutions. : S ' :

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, are prepared
on the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash ﬂows is
prepared using the direct method.

Accounting period

The annual accoonting period of SHB is from 1 Janunary to 31 December.

Accounting currency

The accountinig currency of SHB is Vietnam Dong {“VND"). These consolidated financial statements

13



(a)
(i)

(i)

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank | ' ' _ Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No..77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam  (/ssued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

. Notes to the consolidated financial statements : '+ dated 31 December 2014 of

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) ' - : the State Bank of Viemam) -

Adoption of new accounting guldance
~ Circuolar No. 22!2017!'1'I‘-NHNN _ . ;
_ On 29 December 2017, the State Bank of Vietnam issued Clrcular No 222017/TT- NHNN (“Clrcular '

22") amending and supplementmg a number of articles in the Accounting system of credit institutions

as stlpulated in Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN dated 29 April 2004, and a number of articles in the

regime on financial statements applicable to credit institations as stipulated in Decision No..
16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam. Circular 22 18
effective from 1 April 2018 onwards. :

Significant changes in the accounting p011c1es of the Bank in relatlon to the adoption of Clrcular 22

. have been described in Note 4(b). Besides, the Bank’s presentation of the consohdated ﬁnancml '

statements includes some changes with new forms provided by Circular 22.-
Circular No. 16/2018/TT-BTC

On 7 February 2018, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 16/2018/TT-BTC on guidelines for
financial regulations applied to credit institutions and branches of foreign banks (“Circular 16%).
Circular 16 is effective from 26 March 2018 and supersedes Circular No.-05/2013/TT-BTC dated 9
Japuary 2013 of the Ministry of Finance.

Significant changes in the Bank’s accounting policies related to Lhe adoptlon of Circular 16 and effects
to the consolidated financial statements have been described in Note 4(v) :

Summary of sngmficant accountmg pollcles

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by SHB in the preparatlon of these

" consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by SHB. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control-
ceases . : '

Transactions eliminated on consoh’datian

Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,

are eliminated in preparing the consolidated fipancial statements. The accounting policies of

- subsidiaries have been also revised when necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting pohcles

apphed by SHB

514.
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form B05/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem Distriet, Hanoi, Vietnam {Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) S the State Bank of Vietnam)

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Prtor to I April 2018

- All transactions are recorded in their original currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities denormnated-

in currencies other than VIND are translated into VND at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance

- sheet date, non-monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into VND using the

exchange rates effective at the dates of the transactions.

Income/expense related transactions incurred in foreign currencies are tranqlated into VND usmg the
exchange rates ruling on the dates of the transactions. '

From I April 2018

All transactions are recorded in thelr original currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities denonnnated
in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at the average of the account transfer buymg
rates and selling rates at the end of the last working day of the accounting period, non-monetary foreign
currency assets and liabilities are translated into VND using the exchange tates effective at the dates of
the transactions. - _ : : _ 3

Income/expense related transactions incurred in foreign currencies are translated into VND using the

the average of the account transfer buying rates and selling rates on the dates of the transactions.

The above changes in accounting policies are applied prospecttvely and have no 51gn1f1cant effect on
the consolidated ﬁnanc1al statements of SHB.

Specific accounting policies regarding allowance for credit risks relating to outstanding
financial debts in accordance with the Scheme for Merging HBB into SHB for the permd
from 2016 to 2020 : !

For the outstanding financial debt's, mainly from HBB, the Bank has been approved by SBV to ado'i:t
specific accounting policies based on the solutions for financial treatments proposed in the amended .
Scheme for merging HBB into SHB for the period from 2016 to 2020 (“the Scheme™). The outstandm g
financial debts comprise:

n outstandmg loans of HBB (Notes 4(1) and §1); and

= bonds of Vietnam Asset Management Compdny (“VAMC”) (Notes 4(g)(iv) and 13(ii));
" ion- perfor'ming.capital contribution, share purchases of HBB (Note 4(h), 14(ii));

s doubtful debts from entrusted investments of HBB (Note 4(n) and 17(ii)).

For these outstanding financial debts, for each of the years from 2016 to 2024, SHB would record an
allowance for credit risks with an amount at least equalling the amount determined in Official Letter -
No. 856/NHNN-TTGSNHNN.m dated 8§ November 2016 ("Official Letter No. 856") on approving the
Scheme.

_ In addition, for the outstanding balances of debts granted to Vietnam Shlpbl.llldll‘lg Industry Group
(“Vinashin™) (renamed as Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporatlon - (“SBIC™), some membéer

entities belonging to SBIC and entities previously belonging to SBIC and transferred to Vietnam
National Oil and Gas Group ("PVN"), and Vietnam National Shipping Lines (“Vinalines™), including
those which have been swapped (Note 4(j) and Note 11(i)) and those have not (Note 4(n) and 17(11))
in accordance with Official Letter No. 856, allowance made for these debts are amortised in 10 years,
from 2014 to 2024, as approved in Official Letter No. 559/NHNN-TTGSNHNN dated 17 October 2014,
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Notes to the conselidated financial statements © daied 31 December 2014 of
for the vear ended 31 December 2018 (continued) _ the State Bank of Vietnam)

Cash and cash equivaletlt_s '

Cash and cash equivalents include cash' on hand, gold on hand, balances with the State Banks, balances

- with other credit institutions that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting shori-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other purpoces :

Gold is revaluated at the balance sheet date and the dlfferences ansmg on revaluatlon are recorded 1 in
the consolidated statement of income. '

Balances with and loans to other cfedit institutions

Balances with other credlt mstltutlons except for current deposits, are deposits at other credlt

 institutions with original terms of not exceeding three months.

- Balances with and loans to other credit institutions are stated at the amount of the outstandm g prmcnpal

less any allowance for credit risks.

Credit risk clasmf]catton of deposus with and loans to credit institutions and dllowance thereof is made '
in accordance with Circular. No. 02/2013/TT-NHNN dated 21 Janwary 2013 of the SBV on
classification of assets, level and method of allowance making, and use of allowance against credit risks
in activities of credit institutions and foreign banks’ branches (“Circular 02”) and Circular No.

09/2014/TT-NHNN dated 18 March 2014 of the SBV on amending and supplementing a number of .

articles of Circular 02 (“Circular 09™) which takes effects from 1 June 2014, Accordingly, the SHB has
provided specific allowance for balances with and loans to other credit ll'lSUtth‘anS in accordance. w1th
the method described 1n Note 4(j). -

According to Circular 02, SHB is not required to provide general allowance for balances with and loans

"~ to other credit imstitutions.

Securities held for trading
Classification and recognition

Securities held for trading are unlisted debt securities, which are acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term or there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking.

SHB recognises securities held for trading at the date that it becomes a party under contracts with
respect to these secunities (trade date accounting).
Measurement

Debt securities held for tradmg are stated at cost less allowance for credit risks made in accordance w1th |
Circular 02 and Circular 09 as described in Note 4(j).

An allowance for diminution in the value of securities is made if market prlce of the securities fdlls
below its carrying amount,

Interest income from debt securities held for trading after the acqulsltlon date 1s recognised in the
consolidated statement of income upon receipt. The accumulated interest income from debt secuntles
held for trading before acquisition date will be reduced upon receipt.
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TYCTD-HN -
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hean Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam { !'SSﬂé’d under Circdar No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) ' _ o the S"f’:“’ Bank of V’e'”"’f‘)
De-recognition | o

SHB derecognises trading securities when the contractual rights to the cash flows from these securities
expire or when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these securities have been transferred.

Investment securities

Class;ﬁcanan

At the purchase date, investment securities are classified into two categories: held-to-maturity
investment securities and available-for-sale investment securities. In accordance with Official Letter

No. 2601/NHNN-TCKT issued by the SBV on 14 April 2009, SHB is allowed to reclassify mvestment
- securities once after the purchase date. _ : _ :}

Held-to-marurttv investment securities

Held-to-maturity investment - securities are debt securities " with fixed maturities and fixed br
determinable payments, where SHB has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity.

Available-for-sale mvesrmem secirities

Available-for-sale investment securitics are debt secuntles equity secuntles or other secunt:les, Wthh_

Recognition

SHB recogmses investment securities at the date that it assumes substant:al]y all the risks and rcwards

-of ownershlp of the Secumlcs Investment securities are 1n1t1ally recogmsed at cost.

Measurement

Equity securities _ _

Available-for-sale equity securities are stated at cost; and are subsequently recognised at the ]ower of
the cost and market value with the difference recogmsed in the consohidated statement of income.

- Market value of listed available-for-sale equity securities is determined by reference to closing pnces

of securities from the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange and Hanoi Stock Exchange at the end of the'
accounting period. !

- Market value of unlisted available-for-sale equity securities which are active]y traded on market for

Unlisted Public Companies (“UpCom”) is determined by the closmg price at the end of the accountm g
period.

Market value of unlisted available for-sale equity securities which are actively traded on over—lhie-

- counter market (“OTC") is stated at cost less allowance for securities by reference to the average price

of the transaction price quotes from three securities companies having charter capital above- VND300
billion. : :

In cases where market value of securities cannot be determined rehab]y, such securities are stated at _
cost.
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" Notes to the consolidated financial statements _ . dated 31 December 2014 of

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) - S ~ the Swae Bank of Vietnam)

© Debt securities

Debt securities are initially stated at cost including transaction costs and other directly attributable costs.

They are subsequently recognised at amortised cost (affected by premium/discount amortisation) less
allowance for securities risks, including allowance for credit risks and allowance for devaluation of .
trading securities. Premium and discounts arising from purchases of debt securities are amortised to the
consolidated statement of i income on a straight-line basis over the perlod from acquisition date to -
maturity date. :

Listed available-for-sale debt securities are measured at cost less allowance for securities determined
by reference to closing prices on Hanoi Stock Exchange at the end of the annval accounting period. -

Held-to-maturity debt securities ahd available-for-sale investment securities of unlisted enterprises are
recognised at cost less allowance for securities. Debt classification and allowance for these bonds are
made in accordance with the pollmes applicable to loans and advances to customers as described in
Note 4(j). No general allowance is made for purchases of valuable papers issued by other credit
institutions and foreign bank branches in Vietnam.

Post-acquisition interest income of avatlable—for—sa]e debt securities and he]d-to maturity inves!ment
securities is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis. The acccumulated
interest income before the acqu151t10n date is recognised as a decrease in cost when the mcorne is
received.

De-recognmon

SHB derecognises investment securities when the contractual rights to the cash flows from these
securities expire or when the s1gmﬁcant I'lSkS and rewards of ownership of these securities have been
transferred. :

- Specml bonds issued by Vietnam Asset Management Campany ( “VAMC )

Special bonds issued by VAMC are term valuable papers issued by VAMC for purehasmg bad debis of
SHB. For each bad debt sold to VAMC, SHB receives one special bond issued by VAMC. Par value of
special bonds equals to carrying amount of loan principal balance of the bad debt less specific allowance
made but not yet utilized for such bad debt.

Upon completing the procedures of selling bad debts, the Bank writes down the book value of the bad
debts, uses the specific allowance made but not yet utilised and derecognise interest receivables
recorded in off-balance sheet account. At the same time, the Bank recogmses special bonds issued by _
VAMC held to maturity securities issued by local economic entities.

For special bonds issued by VAMC, the Bank makes allowance in accordance with Circular No.
19/2013/TT-NHNN dated 6 Septernber 2013 issued by the SBV, on the purchase, sale and settlement
of bad debts of VAMC (“Circular 19”) and Circular No. 14/2015/TT-NHNN dated 28 Aungust 2014
isssed by the SBV, regarding the amendments of and supplements to a number of articles of Circular
19 (“Circular 14”). Accordingly, specific allowance for special bonds issued by VAMC is calculated
and provided on the principle of equal annual allocation until maturity date of the special bonds.
Specific allowance is made on an annual basis within 5 working days prior to the maturity date ef eaeh

special bond i in accordance with the followmg formula:

Y
x(m] = =X M~ (Zn +Xnr)
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In which:

s X(py) is the minimum specific allowance for special bonds in the year m;
" X,n—1 1s the accumulated specific allowance made for special bonds until the end of the year 1mi- 1
Y is the face value of special bonds;
n is the duration of special bonds (ycars)
m is the number of years from issuance of special bonds to S the prowswmng date;
Z 1, 1s the accummulated bad debt Tepayment up to the provisioning date (ycar)

If (Z + X)) > SXm the specific provision Xy, will be zero (0).

Specific allowance for schIa] bonds is recorded in the consolldated staterent of income 111 “Allowance
and provision expenses”. ’

~ According to Circular 19 and Circular 14, the Bank is not requlred to provide gencral allowance for

special bonds issued by VAMC.

At the date of bond redemptmn the arising interests collected by thc credit institution from dcbts is

recorded in “Other i mcome
Adoption of specific accounting policies regarding allowance for credit risks relatmg to outstandmg
financial debts in accordance with the Scheme

Upon adoption of specific accounting policies dcscnbed in Note 4(c) for special bonds issued by
VAMC, for each of the years from 2016 to 2024, the Bank would record allowance with an amount at
least equalling the amount determined in Official Letter No. 856 on approving the Scheme. '

Capital contribution, long-term investments

Other long-term investments

Other long-term investments are investments in the equity of other companies without having control
or significant influence. These mvestments are initially stated at cost, and subsequently stated at cost
less allowance for diminution in the value of investments. -

Allowance for diminution in value of other long-term investments

Allowance for diminution in value of other long- _term investments is made when the investee companies
suffer losses, except when the loss was ant1c1pated in the initial business plan before the date of
investment. Allowance for diminution in value is determined as the total actual contributed capital of

- parties to the investee less (-) the actual owner’s equity multiplied (x) by the SHB’s ownership

percentage in the investee. The allowance is reversed if the recoverable amounts are subsequcntly
increased afier the allowance was recognised. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the
investment’s carrying amount does not cxcced the carrymg amount that has been dctcmnned if no
allowance had been recognised. :
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Adoption of specific acwuntmg po!tc:es regarding a!fowance for credit rfsks re!armg 0 oursrandmg
Sfinancial debis in accordance with the Scheme

. Upon adoption of specific accounting policies described in Note 4(c), for non-performing n;:apitél
- contribution, share purchases of HBB, for each of the years from 2016 to 2024, the Bank would record

allowance with an amount at least equalling the amount determined in Ofﬁc1al Letter No. 856 on
approvm g the Scheme. .

. Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are stated at the amount of the principal ontstanding less allowance

for Ioans and advances to customers.

Short-term loans are those with a repayment date within 1 year from the foan disbursement date.
Medium-term loans are those with a repayment date between 1 to 5 years from the loan disbursement

. date. Long-term loans are those w1th argpayment date of more than 5 years from the loan dlsbursement

date.
SHB derecognises loans when the contractual rights to the cash flows from these loans expire or when.
substantnally all the risks and rewards of ownerthp of these loans have been transferred.

For the loans sold to Vietnam Abbet Management Company (“VAMC”), SH__B shall remove them froi'n
the balance sheet in accordance with the guidance in Official Letter No. 8499/NHNN-TCKT dated 14
November 2013 and Official Letter No. 925/NHNN-TCKT dated 19 February 2014 issued by the SBV. '

Debt classification and allowance for credit risks are made in accordance w1th Circular 02 and C1rcular

. 09 as described in Note 4()).

Allowance for loans and advances to customers

- Debt classification

Classification of deposits with and loans to other credit institutions (excluding current deposits),
purchases and entrustment to purchase of unlisted corporate bonds, loans and advances to customers,
and entrusted extension of credit (collectwely referred to as “loans”), loans already sold but payments
not yet collected, is implemented using the method based on the quantitative elements as st1pulated in

-  Article 10 of Circular 02.

Specific allowance for credit nsks

Except for the loans to SBIC, some subsidiaries within SBIC and former member entities of SBIC
which were transferred to PVN, and Vinalines and outstanding loans of HBB, specific allowance for
credit risks as at 31 December under Circular 02 and Circular 09 is determined based on the allowance
rates corresponding to loan principals at the last working day of March less discounted collateral value
The rates of specific allowance for individual loan groups are as follows:
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Loan group

Overdue status

Rate of
allowance

1 |Current

(a) Current loans that being assessed as fully and timely recoverable, both
principals and interests; or

(b) Loans which are overdue for a period of less than 10 days and being
assessed as fully recoverable, both overdue principals and interests, and
fully and timely recoverable, both remaining principals and interests.

0%

Special
mentioned

(a) Loans which are overdue for a period of between 10 days and 90 days;
or

(b) Loans repayment terms of which are restructured for the first time.

5%

Sub -
standard

{(a) Loans which are overdue for a period of between 91 days and 180 days;
or
(b) Loans repayment terms of which are extended for the first time; or
(c) Loans which are exempted or reduced interests because customers are
not sufficiently capable of paving all interests under credit contracts: or
(d) Loans in one of the following circumstances which remain wnrecovered
during a period of less than 30 days after the date of the recovery
decision: '
« Loans in breach of clauses 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 of Article 126 of the Law on
Credit Institutions; or
¢ Loans in breach of clauses 1, 2, 3, 4 of Article 127 of the Law on
Credit Institutions; or
s Loans in breach of clauses 1, 2, 5 of Article 128 of the Law on
Credit Institutions.
(e} Loans which are recovered under inspection conclusions,

20%

4 [Doubtful

(a} Loans which are overdue for a period of between 181 days and 360
days; or

(b) Loans repayment terms of which are restructured for the first time but
still overdue for a period of less than 90 days under that restructured
repayment term; or

(¢) Loans repayment terms of which are restructured for the second time; or

(d) Loans which are specified in point (c) of Sub - standard loan have not
been recoverable for a period of between 30 days and 60 days after
decisions on recovery have been issued; or

{e) Loans which must be recovered under inspection conclusions but fail to
be repaid although recovery term was overdue up to 60 days.

50%

5 |Loss

{(a) Loans which are overdue for a period of more than 360 days; or

{b) Loans repayment terms of which are restructured for the first time but still
overdue for a period of 90 days or more than under that first restructured
repayment term; ot

(c) Loans repayment terms of which are restructured for the second tire but
still overdue under that second restructured repayment term; or

(d) Loans repayment terms of which are restructured for the third time or
later, whether loans are overdue or not; or

(e) Loans which are specified in point (d) of Sub-standard loan have not been
recoverable for a period of more than 60 days after decisions on recovery
have been issued; or

(f) Loans which must be recovered under inspection conclusions but fail to
be repaid although recovery term was overdue for more than 60 days; or

{g) Loans of customers being credit institutions which are announced by SBV
to place in special control status, or foreign banks’ branches of which
capital and assets are blockaded.

100%
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From 20 March 2014 to before 1 April 2015, according to Article 10, Clause 3a of Circular 02, loans -

are restructured and maintained in the same loan group as before rescheduling when they meet the
following conditions; :

* Loans and credit granting are not in breach of the _law; :
* Loan rescheduling serves the purpose of borrowings in credit contracts;
»  Customers use the loans for the right purpose;

» Customers have the new contracted loan repayrnent scheme which is feasible and ali gned with thelr
business plans; and :

= SHB meets the regulations of the SBV on limits, safety ratios in operaucms meludmg a maximum
ratio of short-term fund used for medium or long-term loans in cases of rescheduling short- term '
loans to medium or long-term loans. : -

Only when the above conditions are met, may SHB reschedule the repayment period of the loans to

customers based on internal credit ratings and maintain such loans to customers in the same loan group

. as bemg currently classified. Article 10, Clause 3aof C1reular 02 is effective from 20 March 2014 and
expires on 1 April 2015.

The discounted value of collateral assets is deterrmned in accordance with regulauons in C1rcular 02
specifically as follows: :

= Collateral assets with the value of VNDS50 billion or more for debts of customers who are related
parties of SHB and others as prescribed in Article 127 of the Law on Credit Institutions and
collateral assets with the value of VND200 bllllOIl or more shall be evalnated by a licensed asset
valuation organisation. B

» Other than the above collateral assets are evaluated in accordanee w1th SHB s internal pohcy and
process. :

- The maximum discount rates for collat'eral assets are determined as follows:

Types of collateral assets . . g ' ' Maﬁmum 5
i . ' discount rates
Deposits from customers in VND ' : 100%

Gold bars, except for those without listed pnces deposits from customers in foreign _
currencies . 95%

Government bonds, negotiable instruments, valuable papers issued by SHB: saving
cards, deposit certificates, treasury notes, treasury hills issued by other credit
institutions, foreign banks’ branches:

95% |

*  With the remaining term of less than 1 year . _
= With the remammg term of between 1 year and 5 years . _ ' 85% :
~ = With the remaining term of more than 5 years : : ' . 80%
Securities is:sued by other credit institutions and listed on the Stock Exchange 0%
Securities issued by other enterprises and listed on the Stock Exchange 65%
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Types of collateral assets Ma.ximum

' discount

rates

Unlisted securities valuable papers issued by enterprises which have registered for
listing on the Stock Exchange 30%
Unlisted securities valuable papers issued by enterprises which have not registered for
listing on the Stock Exchange 10%
Real estate 50%
Gold bars without listed prices and other gold and other collateral assets _ 30%

Collateral assets that fail to fully meet conditions specified in Article 12, Clause 3 of Circular 02 are
deemed to have zero allowed value. '

SHB makes and maintains general allowance calculated at 0.75% of outstanding loans and advances

_ that are classified into Group t to 4 on the last working day of November.

Allowance 1s recognised as expenses in the consolidated statement of income and used to write off bad
debts. SHB established a Risk Settlement Committee to write off bad debts when loans and advances
have been classified to Group 5 or when borrowers have declared bankruptcy or dissolved (for
borrowers being organisations or enterprises) or borrowers have been dead or missing (for borrowers
being individuals).

Adoption of specific accounting policies regarding allowance for credit risks relating 1o outstanding
financial debts in accordance with the Scheme

Upon adoption of specific accounting policies described in Note 4{c), for the loans granted to SBIC,
some member entities belonging to SBIC and entities previously belonging to SBIC, and transferred to
PVN, and Vinalines, the Bank would amortise allowance made for these loans in 10 years, from 2014
to 2024. For outstanding loans of HBB, for each of the years from 2016 to 2024, the Bank would record
an allowance for credit risks with an amount at least equalling the amount determined in Official Letter
No. 856 on approving the Scheme.

Bad debts written off

According to Circular 02 and Circular 09, loans and advances to customers are written off against the
allowance when loans and advances to customers have been classified to Group 5 or when borrowers
have been declared bankruptey or dissolved (for borrowers being organisations) or borrowers are dead
or missing (for borrowers being individuals).

Provision for off-balance sheet commitments

According to Circular 02 and Circular 09, the classification of off-balance sheet items are made only
for purpose of managing and supervising quality of credit provision. No provision is made for off-
balance sheet commitments unless SHB is required to fulfil its payment obligation under guarantee
contracts, in which case, classification and allowance for such payment are made in accordance with
the accounting policies described in Note 4(j).
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- Foreign exchange contracts

. SHB is involved in currency forward contracts and currency swap contracts to facilitate customers to

transfer, adjust or reduce foreign exchange risks and other market risks and also for the business

purposes.of SHB.

~ Currency forward contracts are commitments to buy or sell a specific currency at a specific date in the

future with a pre-determined rate, calculated based on nominal amount of principal and will be paid in

“cash. The forwards contracts are recorded at nominal value at the transaction date and are revalued at
- effective exchange rate at the reporting date and are stated at net value in the consolidated ba.lance

sheet. Gains or losses from currency forward contracts are recognised in the consolidated statement of
II'ICOITIE‘ ;

" The currency swap contracts are commitments to settle in cash at a future date based on the difference

between the pre-determined rates, calculated on notional principal amount. Premiums/discounts arising
from the difference of the spot exchange rate at the effective date of the contracts and the forward
exchange rate will be recognised immediately on the effective date of the contracts as an asset if they
are positive or as a lability if they are negative in the consolidated balance sheet. This difference is
amortised to the consohdated statement of income on a stralght -line basis over the term of the swap
contracts. i

i
Interest rate swap contracts :
I
The contract value in basic interest rate swaps of the same currency is not recogmsed in the consolldated
balance sheet. : :

For cross currency interest rate swaps to exchange principals denominated in two different currencies
which are exchanged at the effective date, the contract value is recognised on the consolidated balance
sheet. Income earned and expenses incurred are recogm'aed on an accrual basis.

For cross currency interest rate swaps to exchange principals denominated in two different currencies
which are not exchanged at the effective date, the contract value is recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet for in the same manner with the contract value of currency forward contracts. These
contracts are accounted for in the same manner with currency forward contracts. Income earned and
expenses incurred due to mterest rate effects are recognised on an accrua] basis.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost . : . ' S . ' SR

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed
asset comprises its purchase price; including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after the tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs

- and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged (o the consolidated statement of income in
_ the year in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the

expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from :
the use of an item of tangible fixed assets beyond its originally assessed standard of performanee the

. expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tanglble fixed assets.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of items- of tang1ble

: ﬁxed assets. The estimated wseful lives are as follows:

() . Buildings and structures ' : 25 years'.
(i)  Machines and equipment : . 3 -5 years
(i} Means of transportation - 6-10 years
(iv) - Office equipment : . © 3-7 years
(v)  Other tangible fixed assets - " 4-7 years
Intangible fixed assets

R Software

The cost of acqumng new software which is not an 1ntegral part of the related hardware 15 capltahsed
and treated as an intangible asset. Software costs are amortlsed on a straight-line basis over 3-8 years

Land use rights

Definite land use rights

Definite land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. The initial cost of definite land
use rights comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in conjunction with
securing the land use rights. Deﬁmte land use rights are amortised on a strai ght -line basis over 30 - 46
years. : |

Indefinite land use rights :
Indefinite land use rights are stated at cost and are not amortised. The initial cost of indefinite land use
nghts comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred in COI‘Ile‘ICtan w1th

securing the fand use rights.

‘Other intangible fixed assets

Copyrights, patents and other intangible fixed assets are amortised over a period from 4 years to 10

. years on a straight-line basis.
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" Notes to the consolidated financial statements o + dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued) o | the S?a’e Bank of Vieinam)
Other assets

Other assets, except for receivables from credit activities, are stated at cost less allowance.

* Except for doubtful debts from entrusted investments of HBB and accounts receivable from conversion

of SBIC’s debts, SHB considers making allowance for impairment of assets based on overdue periods
of receivables or estimated Joss arising from undue debts of which the indebted economic organisations
fall bankrupt or are undergoing dissolution procedures; debtors are missing, have fled, are prosecuted,

- detained or tried by law enforcement bodies, are servmg sentences or have deceased. Provision expense
is recorded in “Allowance and provision expenses” during the year.

For the overdue receivables, the provnslon rates are detemnned in accordance with Clrcular 228 and

'Cll'Cl].lal' 89 as follows:

Overdue period | - ' : Allowance rate
= From more than six {06) months up to less than one (01) year 30%

*  From one (01) year up to less than two (02) years = L _ “50%
= From two (02) years up to less than three (03) years _ _ 70%

» Three (03) years or more . _ K 100%

Adoption of specific accounting policies regarding allowance for credit risks relating to outstanding

financial debts in accordance with the Scheme

Upon adoption of specific dccounting policies described in Note 4(c), for accounts receivable swaps
from SBIC’s debts, SHB would amortise allowance for these receivables in 10 years. For doubtful

" debts from entrusted investments of HBB, for each of the years from 2016 to 2024, SHB would record

an allowance for credit risks with an amount at least equalling the amount determined in Official Letter
‘No. 856 on approving the Scheme. o

Provisions

Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a past event, SHB has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be

‘required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vilue of money and the risks
specific to the liability. ' '

Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are stated at their cost.

Valuable papers issued

"~ Valuable papers issued are recorded at cost less extra allocations and discounts. Costs of valuable papers

issued include amounts received from issuance less direct expenses of issuance.
Other payables

Other payables are stated at their cost.
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: qhares is credited to share premium account in eqmty

following reserves before distribution of profits:

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank ' Form BO5/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dac, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam USS“f-’d under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements - o : - dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) . - the State Bank of Vietnam)

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs dlrectly attributable to the issue of ordlnary
shares are recognlsed asa deducuon from equity. :

‘Share premium

On receipt of capital from shareholders the difference between the issue prlce and the par value of the

Treasury shares

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid which includ&s
directly attributable costs, net of tax effects, is recognised as a reduction from equity. Repurchased

shares are classified as treasury shares under equlty and presented as a reduction in total equity.

Reserves and funds

Reserves and funds of the Bank and SHEB FC : | P

" According to Decree No. 93/2012/ND-CP dated 7 August 2017 issued by the Government of Viétnaim'

on financial system for credit institutions (“Decree 937), the Bank and SHB FC is reqmred to make the

Annual allocation Maximum balance
Reserve to supplement charter capital - 5% of profit after tax - 100% of share capital |
Financial reserve 10% of profit after tax Not regulated

The financial reserve is used to cover losses incurred during the normal course of business. Financial
reserve and reserve to supplement charter capital are non-distributable and classified as equity.

Other equity funds are allocated from profit after tax. The allocation from profit after tax to other equity
funds and utilisation of other equity funds must be approved by the shareholders in the General
Shareholders Meeting. Other equity funds are not required by law and are fully distributable.
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank _ Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hean Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements _ _ dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) ' C ~ the State Bank of Viemam)

SHB AMC

According to Circular No, 27/2002/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 22 March 2002, the
allocations to reserves before distribution of retained profits are made by SHE AMC the same as that :
of the Bank. Reserves and other eqmty funds are made from proﬁt after tax at year—end

SHB Laos

Under the Amended Enterpnses Law No. 46/NA dated 26 December 2013, SHB Laos is requlred to
make allocations to compulsory reserves at the rate as follows:

_ . Annual allocation _ Maximum ha]a_nce
Regulatory reserves . " 10% of profit after tax 50% of registered capital
: As per decision of the ' :
Business expansion and other funds  Board of Management Unlimited
SHRB Cambodia

There is no requirement on making allocation to compulsory reserves.

Bonus and welfare fund

Bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from profit after tax in accordance with the resolution of the

-annual General Meeting of Shareholders and are used primarily to make payments to SHB’s employees.

Revenue

Interest income

Prior to 26 March 2018

Interest income is recognised in the consohdated statement of income on an accrual basis, except for
interest on loans classified in Group 2 to Group 5 in accordance with the policy as described in Note
3(j) which is recognised upon receipt. When loans are classified in Group 2 to. Group 5 as defined in
Note 3(j), interest receivable will be removed and recorded as off-balance sheet items. Interest on these
loans are recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt.
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No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Yietnam {Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the censolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) the State Bank of Vietnam)

From 26 March 2018

SHB adopted Circular 16 prospectively. Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
income on an accrual basis, except for interest on loans classified in Group 2 to Group 5 in accordance
with the policy as described in Note 4(j) and loans classified in current loan group to comply with the
State’s policies, which are recognised upon receipt. When loans are classified in Group 2 to Group 5 as
defined in Note 4(j) or classified in current loan group to comply with the State’s policies, interest
receivable will be derecognised and recorded as off-balance sheet items. Interest on these loans are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt.

The above changes in accounting policies are applied prospectively and have no significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements of SHB.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon completion of the
services rendered.

Income from investment

Differences between selling price and weighted average cost of securities are recognised as income
from securities trading.

Dividend income in cash is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when SHB’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividends received in the form of shares, bonus shares and rights to purchase shares given to existing
shareholders, shares distributed from retained earnings are not recognised as an increase in investment
and such dividend income is not recognised in the consolidated statement of income. When share
dividends are received, SHB only recognises an increase in the number of shares in the notes to the

~ consolidated financial statements,

Dividends received in connection with the period before the investment is made are recognised as a
decrease in carrying amount of the investment,

Interest expenses

Interest expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis.

Fee and commission expenses

Fee and commission expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when these
expenses are incurred.

Operating lease payments

Paymenis made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income as an integral part of the total lease expense.
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank . : Form BOS/TCTD-HN
" No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

Notes to the consolidated financial statements _ . dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (confinned) : the State Bank of V‘ema":”
Taxation

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised m
the consolidated statement of income. : :

~ Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the

end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect‘ of previous years. 3

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantlvely
enacted at the end of the annual accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to'the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will l;e

available agamst which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Related partles

- Parties are considered to be related to SHB if one party has the ablllty, directly or indirectly, to control

the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operatm g
decisions, or where SHB and the other party are subject to common control or significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close farmly members of any
individual considered to be a related party.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

At any point of time, SHB has outstanding credit commitments. These commitments are in the form of
loans ‘and approved overdraft. SHB also provides guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the
performance of customers to third parties. Many of the outstanding commitments and contingent

* liabilities will expire without incurring any part or all of an advance. Therefore, commitments dnd

contingent liabilities do not necessarily reflect the cash-flows expected in the future.

Basic earnings per share

SHB presents basic earnings per share (“EPS”) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable io the ordinary shareholders of SHB by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordmary
shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potentlal ordinary shares.

Segment reportmg

A segment is a distinguishable component of SHB that is engaged either in providing related products

or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular eeonomlc :
‘environment {geographical segrnent) which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those

of other segments. SHB’s primary format for segment reporting is based ori geographical segments.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements _ dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) o . the Siate Bank of Vietman)
Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to SHB if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions, or where SHB and the other party are subject to common control or significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family members of any
individual considered to be a related party. :

Related companies refer to the investors and their subsidiaries and associates.

Commitments and confingent liabilities

At any point of time, SHB has outstanding credit commitments. These commitments are in the form of
loans and approved overdraft. SHB also provides guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the

- performance of customers to third parﬁEb Many of the outstanding commitments and contingent

 liabilities will expire without incurring any part or all of an advance. Therefore, commitments and

(i)

contingent liabilities do not necessanly reflect the cash-flows expected in the future.

Cash and gold on hand
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VND million VND million
Cash on hand in VND N 950382 . 886482
Cash on hand in formgn currencies o : 934,021 - . 557448 .
Gold . _ : 419 2,618
1,884,822 1,446,548
Balances with the State Banks
- 31/12/2018 3171272017
. VND miillion - VND millien
Current account at the State Bank of Viemarn (i) '.3,18?,202' 2,970,9:59 :
Balances with the Bank of Lao P.D.R (ii) : ' 248,236 48,354.;
Balances with the National Bank of Cambodia (1ii) _ - 893,301 723,346
N | 4328,739 3,742,659

Deposns at the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV™) consist of a compulsory reserve for liquidity and a
current account .

Under the SBV's regulations relating to the compulsory reserve, banks are permitted to maintain a
floating balance for the compulsory reserve requirement (“CRR”). The monthly average balance of the -
reserves must not be less than CRR rates multiplied by the preceding month’s average balances of
deposits inscope.
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Year-end CRR rates were as follows:

Deposits in scope | CRR rates
' ' 311122018 3171272017

Preceding month's average balances of:
»  Deposits in foreign currencies other than VND with term of less

than 12 months - _ 8.00% 8.00%
»  Deposits in foreign currencies other than VND with term of and '
- more than 12 months 6.00% 6.00%
'+ Deposits in VND with term of less than 12 months 3.00% . 3.00%
= Deposits in VND with term of and more than 12 months 1.00% 1.00%

Balances with the Bank of Lao P.D.R (the “BOL") include the margin deposit of the Bank in Lao Kip
(*LAK"™) and other foreign currencies to establish its subsidiary in Lao People’s Democratic Republic
and compulsory deposits maintained in accordance with the BOL’s requirement. The compulsory
reserve deposits are calculated based on the daily average deposit balance multiplied by the
corresponding CRR rate. '

Year-end annual CRR rates were as follows:

CRR rates
Deposits in scope : 3171272018 © 31/12/2017
= Deposits in foreign currencies other than LAK with term of less :
than 12 months _ 10.00% 10.00%
= Deposits in foreign currencies other than LAK with term of and ' o
more than 12 months 0.00% 0.00%
= Deposits in LAK with term of less than 12 months 5.00% 5.00%
» Deposits in LAK with term of and more than 12 months 0.00% 0.00%

The margin deposits at the BOL are interest free.

Balances with National Bank of Cambodia include the margin deposit of the Bank in Cambodia Riels

(*KHR”) and other foreign currencies to establish SHB’s subsidiaries in the Kingdom of Cambodia and
compuksory deposits matntained in accordance- with National Bank of Cambodia’s requirement. The
compulsory reserve deposits are calcu]ated based on the daily average deposit balance multiplied by the
corresponding CRR rate.

Year-end annual CRR rates were as follows:

CRR rates
Deposits in scope ' : 31/12/2018 3171272017
Deposits in foreign currencies rather than KHR - 12.50% 12.50%
Deposits in KHR o 8.00% 8.00%

The reserve of 8.00% in KHR is interest free, while for the 12.50% of reserve in foreign currency, the
reserve of 8.00% of which is interest free and the 4.50% remaining of reserve is subject to interest rate

-according to the rates ruled by National Bank of Cambodia regarding the interest for term deposits.
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Balances with and loans to other credit institutions
31/12/2018 31/1272017
VND million VYND million

Current accounts
Current accounts in VND 24,091,166 19,799,397
Current accounts in foreign currencies 617,158 1,012,680
Term deposits
Term deposits in VND 3,348,000 3,130,000
Term deposits in foreign currencies 1,244,003 3,917,433

' 29,300,327 27,859,510

- Loans to other credit institutions
Loans in VND - 5,654,000
29,300,327 33,513,516

‘As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all term deposits and loans to other credit institutions

were Group 1 — Current loans.

Securities held for trading

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VND million VND million
Debt securities issued by local economic entities 3,889 3,889
Allowance for securities held for trading (i) (3,234) (2,839)
635 1,050

Movements of allowance for securities held for trading during the year were as follows:

2018 2017 _
VND miillion YND millien
Opening balance 2,839 24,483
Allowance made/(reversed) during the year 395 (21,644)
Closing balance 3,234 2,839
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Derivatives and other financial assets/(liabilities)

Details of financial dertvatives at the end of the year were as follows:

Total contract value

(at exchange rate of

the effective date of
the coniract)

‘Total book value

(at exchange rate of reporting date)

Assets

Liabilities Net

VNI million YND million YND million VND million
As at 31 December 2018
Forward transactions 1,034,938 49,554 (33,920 15,625
Swap transactions 15,656,260 235,058 (193,355) 42,603
16,691,207 285,512 (227,284) 58,228
As at 31 December 2017
Forward transactions 3,079,362 31,290 (28,974) 2,316
Swap transactions 24,267,643 604,182 (470,233) 133,949
27,347,005 635,472 (499,207) 136,265
Loans to customers
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VYND million VYND million
Loans to economic entities and individuals 214,800,971 196,082,946
Loans granted from borrowed and entrusted funds 2,135,359 2,164,713
Payments on behaif of customers 51,221 35,359
Discounted bills 1,330 7,548
216,988,881 198,290,566
Loan portfolio by loan groups was as follows:
31/12/2018 31/12.2017
VYND million YND millicn
Group 1 — Current 207,091,422 190,368,095
Group 2 — Special mentioned 4,698,654 3,298,174
Group 3 — Sub-standard 339,729 009,686
Group 4 - Doubtful 920,954 1,088,771
Group 5 — Loss 3,938,122 2,865,240
216,088,881 198,290,566
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- Loan portfolio by terms was as follows:

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

VND million VND million

Short-term loan | 88719288 83,106,717

 Medium-term loan ' 58,634,979 53,433,957,
Long-term loan . 69,634,614 61,749,892 -

| - 216,988,851 198,290,566

Portfolio of loans to customers by ownerships and customer types was as follows:

31/12/2018 % 31/12/2017 = %
VND million ' VND million

Loans to economic entities ' o
- State-owned enterprises 18,624,232 - 858 21,144.378 - 10.66
Other limited companies . 36,912,609 17.01 35,056,234 17.68 .
Joint stock companies in which the ' L
State’s holding percentage is more than ' o
50% (dominating percentage) o 13,093,719 6.03 - 16,986,332 857
Other joint stock companies . 88514778 40.79 80,842,480  40.77
Parterships _ 99,079 0.05. 8,327 0.00
Private companies 3.614,43] Lo7 2,527,685 127
Foreign invested enterprises _ _ 462,659 0.21 499434 0.25.
- Cooperatives, cooperative unions - 49,403 0.0z . 66,194 - 0.03
Loans to individuals _ _ ' : . ;
‘Household business, individuals 53,724,350 2477 38,82],]06 19.58"
Other loans : _ . : o 5
Other econontic sectors 1,893,621 0.87 . 2,338,202 119

216,988,881 10000 198,290,566  100.00
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Loan portfolio by industry sectors was as follows:

Agriculture, forestry and aquaculture
Mining

Manufacturing and processing

Electricity, gas, hot water, steam and
air-conditioning

Water supplying and garbage and sewage
treatment and management

Construction

Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor
vehicles, motor cycles

Transport, warchounse

Hospitality services

Information and communications

Finance and insurance

Real estates trading

Science and technology

Administrative activities and supporting service
Party, unions, state management, security and
national defence, social guarantee
Education and training

Health care and social work

Art, playing and recreation

Other service activities

Households services

Year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

Loans and advances in YND
Loans and advances in USD
Loans and advances in other foreign currencies

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

fissued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

dared 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Vieinam)

31/12/2018 % 317122017 %
VND million VNI million
38463768 17.73 43249519 21.81
4,493 748 2.07 7659777 3.56
29057 113 13.81 27452713 13.84
15,373,337 7.08 10.757.675 5.43
158,586 0.07 118,622 0.06
28,795,080  13.27 27,913,697 14.08
36,247,298 16.7 32,346,233 16.31
2,416,317 111 3,158,672 .59
1,189,297 0.55 1,331,461 0.67
959, 840 0.44 111,063 3.06
2,517,173 116 2,263,714 1.14
16,756,345 7.72 15,700, 331 7.92
98 736 0.05 599,078 3.30
051543 0.44 1,127,811 057
28,546 0.01 42,649 0.02
723 744 0.33 420,811 021
72,367 0.03 121,718 0.06
2582 306 0.13 257,293 0.13
32,474,365  14.98 20,154,350 10.17
5028372 2.32 3,503,079 177
216,988,881 100.00 198,290,566 100.00
31/12/2018 31/1272017
75%-12.18% 7.50% - 12.00%
22% - 55% 1.90% - 5.01%
2.2% -55% 1.90% -501%
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~ Allowance for loans to customers consists of:

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Allowance for loans to customers

31/12/2018

Form B0O5/TCTD- HN

f Issued under Circular No 49/2014-TT- NHNN_
. . dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Viemam)

311272017

VND million VND million .

General allowance (i) 1,492,247 1,459,886

Specific allowance (ii) 1,509,982 1,389,129

| 3,002,229 2,849,015

Movements in general allowance for loans to customers were as follows

2018 2017

VND million VND million

Opening balance 1,459,886 1,066,332
Allowance made in the year 30,086 394,053i
Foreign exchange differences - 2,275 (499)
1,492,247 1,459,886

Movements in specific allowance for Joans to customers were as follows:

2018 2017 |

VND millien . VND million

Opening balance 1,389,129 731,05$

- Allowance made in the year 847,794 887.806
Allowance utilised in the year (731,038) (231,740)
Foreign exchange differences 4,097 2,019
11,509,982 1,389,129

" Included in specific allowance for loans and advances to customers were allowance made for loans to

_ SBIC, some member entities belonging to SBIC and entities previously belonging to SBIC, and

transferred to PVN, Vinalines, and specific allowance for outstanding loans of HBB. SHB applled

specific accounting policies described in Note 4{(c) to record allowance for these loans.
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Investment securities _ __
31/12/2018 31212017 |
VND million . VND million
_ Available-for-sale securities (i) 25,193,006 _ 12,268,348
Held-to-maturity securities (ii) 24,761,139 10,682,862
49,954,145 22,95 1?,2150
Available-for-sale securities _
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VND million VND million:
'Debt securities : _ .
» Government bonds 8,993,787 7,996,543
= Securities issued by other local credit mstxtut:ons 2,182,711 - 2,799,851
= Securities 1ssued by local economic entities 13,982,900 1,43 8,'356
Equity securities : o
» Securities issued by other local credit institutions 796 796
= Securities issued by local economic entities 32,803 32,802
25,193,006 12,268,348
The term and annual interest of debt securities at the year-end were as follows:
' 31/12/2018 31/122017 o
Term . Interest rate Term . Interest rate
per annam ' per annum.
Available-for-sale securities _
Government bonds 3-10years 4.60%-112% 3-10 years 4.6% - 1:2.’2;%
Bonds issued by Jocal ' o
credit institutions 2-10years  7.90%-9.33% 1-10 years 6.7% - 9%
Bonds issued by local economic : T Lo
entities - 1 - 15 years 898% 1-15 years 8.98%
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanol, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued)

Held-to-maturity Securities' '

Government bonds
Bonds issued by local credit institutions
Bonds issued by local economic entities

Special bonds issued by VAMC

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

(Issued under Circular No 49/2014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of -

the State Bank of Viemam)

3122018 317122017 -

VND million "¥ND million :
8,039,210 149,719
8694237 1,799,797
526,53 614,536
7,501,156 8,118,810
24761139 10,682,862

The term and annual interest of debt securities at the year-end were as follows:

3171272018 31/12/2017

Term Interest rate Term Interest rate

' per annum : per annum ’

Held-to-maturity securities ' . : !

Government bonds -3-20years 5.20% - 8.90% 20 years 1.4%

Bonds issued by local ' ' o

credit mstitutions - 6-10years 7.00%-9.00% 6-10years  7%-8.2%
Bonds issued by local economic : _ o

. entities : 9-10years 8.9%-11.25% 9-10years 8.9% - 15.25%

Portfolio of unlisted debt securities (excluding government bonds, government guaranteed bonds and
special bonds) class1ﬁed as assets exposed to credit risk by loan groups was as follows: :

Current

" Loss (%)

31/12/2018 3112/2017 2

VND million " 'VND million.
23,388,706 5,914,895
150000 150,000
23538706 6,064,895

This represent the investment in bonds of Vinaconex — Viettel Finance ] oint Stock Company (“VVF”)
After VVF was merged into SHB, allowance for this investment and other VFF’s outstanding loans are
made in accordance w1th the specific accounting poh::les as described in Nete 4(c). :
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Saigon . Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

" No.77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanol, Vietnam
‘Notés to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Allowance for investment securities

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

{1ssied under Circular No 492014-TT-NHNN
" dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Viemnam)

3171272018

317122017

VND million VND million,
Available-for-sale securities (i) 191,073 125,904
Held-to-maturity securities (i) - 1,736,147 1,617,342
1,927,220 1,743,246
.Movem'ents in allowance for available-for-sale securities in the year Were as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2018 o
' ' Allowance for General ~ Specific Total
diminution in allowance for allowance for ST
the value of available-for-  available-for-
equity sale debt sale debt
securities securities securities . o
VYND million VND million VND million VND million:
Opeﬁing balance 32,901 18,003 75,000 125,904
Allowance made during a
the year = _ 135 65,034 - - 65,169
33,036 83,037 | . 75,000 I9I,07_3 _
Year ended 31 December 2017
AHowance for General Specific Total
.diminution in allowance for allowance for
the value of available-for- available-for-
equity sale debt - sale debt
securities securities securities
VND million ~~ VNDmillien . VND million  VND million
 Opening balance 33,050 17,740 75,000 125,790
Allowance : :
. (reversed)made during : o
- the year : (149) 263 - -1 lé}
32,901 18,003 75,000 125,904
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam {Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) the State Bank of Viemam)

Movements of allowance for held-to-maturity securities in the year were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

Allowance for Allowance for Total
bonds issued by  other held-to-
VYAMC (%) maturity bonds

VND million VND million VND million
Opening balance 1,602,084 14,358 1,617,342
Allowance made during the year 477,168 51,091 528,259
Allowance reversed during the year
dne to settlement of bonds (409,454) - (409,454)

1,670,698 65,449 1,736,147

Included in allowance for bonds issued by VAMC were bonds within the scope of the Scheme. The
Bank adopts the specific counting policies as described at Note 4(c) to record allowance for these bonds.

Year ended 31 December 2017

Allowance for bonds Allowance for Total
issued by VAMC other held-to-
maturity bonds

VND million VND million VND million

Opening balance 1,254,887 1,050 1,255,937
Allowance made during the year 348,097 13,308 361,405
1,602,984 14,358 1,617,342
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Saigon - Hanoi 'Joiht Stock Commefcial Bank

- No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements -
for the vear ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Long-term investments

Portfolio by types of investments was as follows:

Other long-term investments - cost (i)
Allowance for diminution in the value of

- long-term investments (ii)

Form BO5/TCTD-HN

(fssueaf. under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Vietmam)

31/12/2017

Details of other long-term investments at the year-end were as follows:

Investments in economic entities
Investments in financial institutions

3171272018
'VND million ~ VND million
201,750 227.250
(5,983) (11,785)
195,767 215,465
31/12/2018 - 31/12/2017
VYND million VYND million
157,736 183,236
44014 44,014
201,750 227,250

Movements in allowance for diminution in the value of long-term investments in the year were as

follows:

Opening balance
Allowance (reversed)/made in the year

Closing balance

2018 2017
VND million VND million -
11,785 6,444
(5.802) 5,341
5,983 11,785

Included in allowance for diminution in the value of long-term investments were allowance for capital

contribution, share purchases of HBB. The Bank adopts the specific counting policies as described at

Note 4(c) to record allowance for these investments.
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Saigon - Hanei Joint Stock Commercial Bank ) = S . ' Form BOS/TCTD-HN .
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam ' ' . {Issued under Circular No‘49/2014-]?:?NHNN'
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)  dated 51 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam)

15, Tangible fixed assets

Year énded 371 December 2018 : _
' ' ‘Buildings and Machines and Means of Office Other tangible Total

structures equipment transportation equipment fixed assets
VND million VND miilion VND million VYND million * ¥YND million VND million-
Cost _ R : _ . : - . .
Opening balance ' : 363,131 320,296 - 208,414 92,705 - 26,885 - 1,011,431
- Additions ' _ 34,390 64,153 - 30,876 - 3,773 12,662 . 145,854 -
Disposals . - S (2,265) .- {972) - (7.092) (5,901) (1,848 (18,078)
Foreign exchange difference : 893 206 114 210 - o 1,428
Closing balance 396,154 . 383,683 : 232,312 - 90,787 37,699 1,140,635
‘Accumulated depreciaﬁon S o . .
“Opening balance S 90,347 . 250,441 136,584 ' 84,611 24,024 ' 586,007
Charge for the year 21,546 36,705 18.754 . 3,662 4,478 85,1435
~ Disposals o : (1,906) (971) (6,908) © (5,364) (1,833 - (16,982)
Foreign exchange difference , 423. 139 ' 84 . 145 - 79
Closing balance - 110410 286314 148514 83,054 26,669 654,961
Net book value, - _ _ g _ . : . _ : _ _
Opening balance - 272,784 69.855 . 71,830 - 8,094 - 2,861 . 425,424
Closing balance , 285,744 _ 97,369 : 83,798 o 7,733 11,030 485,674




Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank _ _ Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam ' ) (Issued “ﬂdg"‘ C;'"ﬂ'fﬂrgo"’?of‘?:j””w
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) dated 31 December 2014 of the Siate Bank of Viemnam)

Year ended 31 .December 2017

Buildings and . Machines and Means of ' Office Other tangible Total
structures equipment transportation equipment fixced assets
VND million VND million VND miillion VND million VYND million VND million

Cost ' : .
Opening balance 325,290 314,367 202,081 93,743 26,723 962,704
Additions 52,749 20,356 9,950 4,961 3,088 91,104
Disposals _ © o (15,356) (14,962) (3,625} (3,528) (2,926) (40,397)
Foreign exchange difference ' 448 35 B , (2471) - (1,980)
Closing balance 363,131 320,296 208,414 92,705 26,885 1,011,431
Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 83,639 . 227,524 121,024 82,601 23,870 538,658
Charge for the year 18,151 37,784 - 19,140 ' 5,131 3,012 83,218
Disposals (11,640) - (14,888) (3,590) (3,171) (2,858) (36,147)
Foreign exchange difference 197 21 10 - 50 : - 278
Closing balance ' 90,347 250441 136,584 84,611 24,024 586,007
Net book value - : _

Opening balance o 241,651 87,343 . 81,057 11,142 2,853 424,046
Closing balance _ 272,784 69,855 71,830 8,094 2,861 425,424
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam {Issued under Circular No. 49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2_91 4of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued) the State Bank of Vietnam}

Intangible fixed assets
Year ended 31 December 2018

Land use Software  Other intangible Total
rights fixed assets
VND million VND million VNDmillion VND million

Cost

Opening balance 3,486,801 211.811 39,877 3,738,489

Additions 795,166 10,226 4,368 809,760

Disposals (918) (2,756) - (3,674)
Foreign exchange difference - 38 47 83

Closing balance 4,281,049 219,319 44,292 4,544,660

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance 5,805 178,174 27,617 211,596

Charge for the year 158 23,139 4,631 27,928

Disposals - (1,709 - (1,709
Foreign exchange difference - 38 47 85

Closing balance 5,963 199,642 32,295 237,900

Net book value

Opening balance 3,480,996 33,637 12,260 3,526,893

Closing balance 4,275,086 19,677 11,997 4,306,760
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. Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank _ o Form BO5/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Jssued under Cir cular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements _ : ~ dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) o o _'""hf"’ State Bank of V’emm’}

Year ended 31 December 2017

‘Land use Software  Other intangible .  Total

rights . ' fixed assets :

VND million VND million  VND million  VND million
Cost ' o o '
Opening balance’ 3,478,880 207,848 40,188 3,726,916
Additions _ - 12,215 13,770 155 26,140
Disposals. ' (4,294) - ' - (4,294)
Divestment of SHBS : - ©(9,787) - (440) (10,227)
Foreign exchange difference - (20 - . (26) - (46)
Closing balance : 3,486,801 211,811 - 39,877 ' 3,?39{,48_9
Accumulated amortisation _ ' o .
Opening balance . 5,647 160,748 . 22,515 - 188,910
Charge for the year . : 158 27,122 - 5,557 32,837
Divestment of SHBS - C (9,677 (439 - (10,116)
Foreign exchange difference : - : (19 (16) (35)
Closing balance a 5,805 178,174 27.617 211,59
Net boﬁk value : . | : ' -
Opening balance o 3,473,233 47 100 . 17,673 3,538,006

Closing balance 3,480,996 33,637 12260 3,526,893
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

Form B0O5/TCTD-HN

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vletnam (Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

Notes to the consolidated fimancial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued)

dated 31 December 2014 of
the Stare Bank of Viemam)

Other assets .
31/12/2018 3141272017
'VND million VND miillion
Receivables o 7,868,333 13,326,319
In which: - _
» Receivables from deferred letters of credit {*} 6,089,972 8,095,834
w Receivables from land rental 648,642 625,557
» Receivables from debts purchase contracts 321,289 -
* Receivables from sale of securities _ - 3,495,389
v Receivables from provision of advisory services - 416,070,
v Other receivables : 773,082 579,694
Purchase of fixed assets and construction in progress 112,563 85_,136?
Accrued interest and fee receivables 9,117,746 7,955,903
Other assets (i) 4,256,033 - 5,395,762
Allowance for other assets (ii) (653,216) {410,374)
20,701,459 26,352,746/

These represent receivables from customers relating to deferred letters of credit, which may be
received immediately. These receivables are equivalent to a borrowing from correspondent banks

(Note 19) which made advance payments to beneficiaries of those letters of credit.

Other assets _
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VND millien VND million
Trusted investments | 1,826,300 1,926,309
Foreclosed assets awaiting resolution 629,332 1,428,242
Prepaid expenses . : 438,400 345,267
Loss on swap of SBIC loans awa.lt:mg resolution (*) ' 708,584 828,584
Real estates for sale 21,199 97.191
Other assests _ 632,209 770,169
4,256,033 5,395,762

On 12 September 2013, SHB swapped the loans to SBIC with Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading
Corporation (“DATC") bonds. The difference between carrying value of the loans are translated and
the amount of DATC bonds are recognised as other assets. SHB applies the specific accounting policies

as described in Note 4(c) and amortises these loans in 10 years, from 2014 to 2024,
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Allowance for other assets

Form BO5/TCTD-HN
{Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of

Allowance for other on-balance sheet assets for sale includes:

Allowance for trusted investments (*)
Allowance for other assets

the Staie Bank of Viemam)

31/122017

31/12/2018
VND million VND million
616.400 386,400
36.316 23.974
653,216 410,374

The Bank applies the épeciﬁc accounting policies as described in Note 4(c) 1o record the trusted

investments of HBB.

Movements in allowance for other on-balance sheet assets were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

Open.ing balance :
Allowance made during the year
Allowance utilised during the year

Closing balance

Year ended 31 December 2017

Opening balance
Allowance made during the year

Closing balance

Allowance for Alloﬁance for Total
doubtful debts from other assets
trusted investments :
VYND million VND million VND million
386,400 23,974 410,374
350,000 12,842 362,842
(120,000) - (120,000)
616,400 :36,816 653,21§
Allowance for Allowance for Total
outstanding other assets
receivables of HBB :
YND million VND riillion VYND million
129,700 13,635 143 335
256,700 10,339 267,039
386,400 23,974 410,37_4
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(iii)
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank : Form B05/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hean Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.45/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) the State Bank of Vienam)

Amounts due to the Government and the State Banks

| 31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VND million VND million
Deposits from the State Banks
Deposits in YND from the State Treasury of Vletnam {i) 2,000,000 -
Deposits from the Bank of Lao P.DLR (i) 114,379 -
Borrowings from the State Banks
Borrowings based on credit facilities (1i1) - 835,544 1,224,351
Borrowings on discounted and rediscounted valuable
papers (iv) 9,261,314 1,533,992
12,211,237 ' 2,758,343

The deposits in VND from the State Treasury of Vietnam has a term of 2 months, interest rate of 4.4%
per annum (31/12/2017: Nil),

The deposits in LAK from the Bank of Lao P.D.R has a term of 3 months, interest rate of 3% per
annum (31/12/2017: Nil).

The borrowings based on credit facilities of the Bank at the State Bank of Vietnam has a term of 1
year, interest rate of 3.5% per annum (31/12/2017: term ranging from 6 months to 1 year, interest rate
from 3.5% to 4.25% per annum).

The borrowings on discounted and rediscounted valuable paperé at the State Bank of Vietnam has a
term ranging from 7 days to 14 days and bare interest rate of 4.75% per annum (2017:from 3.5% to
4.25% per annum).
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*)

" . No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnain
- Notes to the consolidated financial statements -

Form BOS/TCTD-HN
(Fssued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
: dated 31 December 2014 of

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions | ;
| 311122017

. . the State Bank of Vietnam) '

3111212018 7 |

VYND million VND million :

Démand deposits o
Demand deposits in VND 21,683,622 19,036,29!1
Demand deposits in foreign currencies 8,321 959,233

- Term deposits 3 ' S
Term deposits in VND 7,208,000 11,250,30_0_
Term deposits in foreign currencies - 2,452,240 2,052,03{1

| 31,352,183 33,297,858

_ Borrowings from other credit institutions . ' o
Borrowings in VND 6,630,734 10,261-,03§
Borrowings in foreign currencies 209,069 905,643

. Borrowings under financial projects (*) 651,811 440,048
- Payables for deferred letters of credit 6,089,972 8,095,834
13,581,606 19,702,561

44,933,789 53,000,419

These are borrowings from International Develbpmem Association - World Bank under Rural Financ::e
Project 1T and III to provide loans to houscholds for the miral development and poverty reduction in
Vietnam. Loans to households bear interest rates as declared by SHB from period to period. i

Year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

31/12/2018 311122017

- Term deposits in YND 1.00% - 6.10% 1.20% - 5.00%
Term deposits in foreign currencies 1.65% - 3.50% 1.60% - 3.00%

Borrowings in VND
Borrowings in foreign currencies

1.20% - 5.85%
0.75% - 3.75%

1.10% - 5.95%
0.75% - 2.79%
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Term deposits in foreign currencies

" Saigon - Hanoi Jeint Stock Commercial Bank
" No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietham

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Deposits from customers

Demand deposits

- Demand deposits in VND

Demand deposits in foreign « currencies

Term deposits

- Term deposits in VND

Term deposits in foreign currencies -

Deposits for specific purposes
Deposits for specific purposes in VND
Deposits for specific purposes in foreign currencies

Margin deposits
Margin deposits in VND -
Margin deposits in foreign currencies

Form BOS/TCTD-HN"

(fssued under Circular No.49/20]4-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of

the State Bank of Vtemam} :

317122017

Deposits from customers by type of customers/enterprises were as follows:

Economic entities
Individuals
Others

Year-end annual interest rates were as follows:

Term deposits in VND

3111212018 2017
~ VND million VND million |
17,704,538 16,214,179 -
1,261,577 1,538,702
195,239,126 164,002,428,
9,938,773 12,150,138 -
1,004,478 89,809
52,445 22
5,224 872,353
17,980 22,139
225,224,141 194,889,770
317122018 317122017 |
VND million VND million
69,427,788 58,819,060
147,319,885 125,990,775
8,476,468 10,079,935
225,224,141 194,889,770
31122018 31122017
100%-7.80%  1.00%-7.60% -
0.00%-200%  0.00%-2.00%

In case customers withdraw term saving deposits prior to the matunty date, interest shall be apphed m
accordance with SHB s policy from time to time in conformlly with the SBV’s regulations.
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Saigon - Hanoi Jeint Stock Commercial Bank ' Form BOS/TCTD-HN

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanei, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.AS/2014-TT-NHNN
- Notes to the consolidated financial statements : dﬂ;leds?f Dgcer;:ber 501{ af
" for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) - . o e ff“‘" a‘_“ of ”_"m“_’?").

Other borrowed and entrusted funds | - ;
o ' 31/12/2018 311122017

VYND million VND million:
Medium-term, long-term borrowings from Small and '
Medium Enterprise Development Fund Phase IT and - .
Phase III (i) - 440,784 _ 418,205
Long-term borrowings from Renewable Energy ' . : o
Development Project (ii) : 889,800 470,391
Medium and Jong-term borrowmgs from the Smart - : D
Power Grid Funding Project (ii1) : : 143,127 o 2,166
Medium and long-term borrowings from the : i o
Sustainable Rural Transformation Project - o - 173,399
1,473,711 i 1,064,161

Borrowings from Small and Medium Enterprises Development Fund - Phase IT and Phase I are
borrowings from Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) through Project Management Unit
of ODA International Credit to provide loans to eligible small and medium enterprises. For loans to
small and medium enterprises, applied interest rates are declared by SHB from time to time.

Long-term borrowings from Renewable Energy Development Project are borrowings froi’h

" International Development Association to provide loans to renewable energy projects. Interest rate of

these loans is a weighted average of interest rates of customer deposits in VND with terms rangmg
from 0 to 12 months published quarterly by the SBV, adjusted by interest margm and the deductlon
rate as regulated by the Ministry of Finance.

' Long-term borrowings from Kreditan stalt fiir Wiederanfbau (KfW) to finance the investments in hi gﬁ -

voltage power grid in Vietnam. The implementing unit of the project is National Power Transmission

* Corporation — Vietnam Electricty (EVN NPT). The borrowing had a fixed interest rate is 7.2% per

anoum.

‘Valuable papers issued .

Valuable papers issued represent promisory notes classified by term as follows:

3122018 31/12/2017 |

Term - | o : _ | VND million VYND million:
Promisory notes - below 12 months ' o | 7,647,099 11,744,63:4
Bonds - from 12 months to 5 years : ' 1,000,000 o -
Bonds - more than 5 years 8,074,637 3,222,635

| | 16,721,736 14967269




Saigon - Hanoi Jeint Stock Commercial Bank . . Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam {Issued under Circular No.49/201'4~TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contlnued) f_he State Bank of Viemam)

23, Other habllmes

31/12/2018 - 31122017
V¥ND million VND million -

Accrued interest and fee payables .5,294,909 - 4,103,201
Other payables and liabilities

Internal payables - -

* Payables to employees 11,204 - 4,086

*  Bonus and welfare fund 27,746 34,384

»  Other internal payables - 9,507

- External payableb ' :

- 0 Taxes and others payable to Siare Budget (i} 275,997 © 229513

% Payables on payment intermediary services 721,535 256,349

» Unearned reventie ' 31,316 - :

»  Other payables 16,155 1,859

| 1,083,953 535,698

6,378,862 4638899

(1) Taxesand others payable to State B.udget :

- | | 31/12/2018 31/12/2017

VND million VND million :

Corpdratc income tax 221,929 1 78,226

Value added tax 35,912 43,051

Other taxes 18,156 8.236

275,997 229,513 -
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank -
‘No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam '
_ Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued)

As at 1 January 2017

Net profit for the year
Appropriation lo equity funds
Appropriation to bonus and
welfare funds

. Tax retained from transfer of

profit from subsidiary

" Other movements

Disposals of SHBS
Foreign exchange difference

As at 31 December 2017

Issuance of share dividends
Net profit for the year
Appropriation to equily funds
Foreign exchange difference

As at 31 December 2018

Capital and reserves

Financial

Supplemental = Other

- Changes in capital and reserves of SHB for the yéar ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Form BO5/TCTD-HN -
(Issued under Circular No.49%2014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam)

Share Share Treasury  Invesiment Foreign  Noncontrolling Retained Total
capital premium shares and reserve capital TESETVES c'xchan_ge mterest profits '
development reserve difference :
] ) fund : :

VYND YND VND VYND - ¥YND VYND VND YND VND VND. VND
million -million million million million million . million million million million miillion
11,196,891 101,716 (52000 25,013 - 682,932 329,202 1,022 - 2.,306 397,001 13,231 ,573

- - ' - - - - - - _ - 1,539,128 1,539,128 .
- 135,689 76,426 - - (230) (211,885) -
- - - - - - (20,000) (20,000)
- - - - - (3,566) (5.566)
- - - - - - (3,391 {3.391)
- (15,000) (15,0000 - - (2,076) {19,391) (31.467)
- (16) - - 959 943
11,196,801 101,716 (5,260) 25,013 803,621 390,702 1,022 - 2177515 14,691,220
839,270 - ' - - - - - (839,270) -
i ; - B - - - 1672319 1,672319
- - 3.538 155,095 87.956 - ) - (246,58% Co-
- - - - 54 - (5.8%1) - (25,170} (31,007)
12,036,161 101,716  (5,260) 28,551 958,716 478,712 022 (5.890) - 2738805 16332532
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Share capital

Shares registered for
issuance

Issued share capital
Ordinary shares

Number of shares
repurchased
Ordinary shares

Shares in circulation
Ordinary shares

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

tIssued under Circular No. 49%/2014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Barnk of Vietham)

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
Number of Par value Number of Par value
shares shares
VYND million YND million

1,203.,616,110 12,036,161 1,119,689,100 11,196,891
1,203,616,110 12,036,161 1,119,689,100 11,196,891

496,186 4962 496,186 4,962
1,203,119,924 12,031,199 1,119,192 914

11,191,929

All ordinary shares of the Bank have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at
meetings of the shareholders. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to
time. All ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Bank’s residual assets.

Movements in share capital during the year were as follows:

Opening balance
Payment of dividends in the
form of shares

Closing balance

2018 2017
Number of Par value Number of Par value
shares ' shares
VYND million VND million
1,119,689,100 11,196,891 1,119,689,100 11,196,391
§3,927.010 839,270 - -
1,203.616,110 12,036,161 1,119,689,100 11,196,891




25.

26.

. No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
- Notes to the consolidated financial statements
_ for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

: Form BO5/TCTD- I-IN
(Issued aunder Cz rcular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
' dated 31 December 2014 of

the State Bank of Vietnam)

Sai gon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

Dividends

The Resolution No. OI/NQ-DHDCD dated 27 April 2017 of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2017 passed the plan to list additional shares for payment of dividends to shareholders
at the rate of 7.5% (for every 1,000 shares, a shareholder is entitled to 75 additionally issued shares).

According to the Report No. 286/TGD dated 24 January 2018 on results of issuing shares for dividend
payment, which has been sent to the State Securities Comnnssmn the Bank completed the issuance of

83,927,010 shares to CKISIID g shareholders.

Net interest income

) 2018 2017

* ¥YND million VND million:

Interest and similar iﬁcome from - o
Balances with other credit institutions 418,617 393,956
Loans to customers and other credit institutions - 19,560,989 16,414,175
. Investments in debt securities ' - 2.447.351 - 1,139,572
Fees from guarantee services 89,625 173,688
Other credit activities 124,784 98,823
22,641,366 18,220,214

Interest and similar expenses for S .
Deposits from customers and other credit institutions 14,753,429 11,493,165
Borrowed and entrusted funds 355,968 473,635
Valuable papers issued 1,150,310 1,124,006
Other credit activities 825,757 332,748
| 17,085,464 13,423,554

Net interest income 5,555,902 4,796,660




. Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

- No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

27. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income from -
Settlement and cash services
. Treasury services '
Agency services
Consulting services
Other services

Fee and commission expenses for
Consulting services
Settlement and cash services

- Telecommunication expenses
Treasury services

- Dther services

Net fee and commission income -

28. Net gain from trading of foreign currencies

Revenues from trading of foreign currencies
Spot foreign exchange trading '
Financial derivatives .

Income from trading of gold .

Expelises from trading of foreign currencies

Spot foreign exchange trading
Financial derivatives
- Expenses for trading of gold

Net gain from trading of fdreign currencies

- Form BO5/TCTD-HN
(fssued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

" dated 31 December 2014 of .
the State Bank of Vietnam)

2018

2017
VND million VYND million -
265,512 191,422
21,489 16,011 -
165,319 1,242,838
125934 :
244,735 75,899
822,989 1,526,170
14,993 s
48,763 25,930
22,458 18,539
14,912 10,179
7,921 14,657
109,047 69,305
713,942 1,456,865
2018 2017
VYND million VND million -
310,901 479,847
418,858 375,242
1,659 176
731,418 855,265
365,443 434,067
302,712 366,863
1516 88
669,671 801,018 -
61,747 54,247
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~ Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

" No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Form BO5/TCTD-HN
{Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Vietnani)

29. Net gain/(ldSs) from trading of investment securities

30.

Gain/(loss) from trading of available-for-sale securities
Gain from trading of available-for-sale securities
Loss from trading of available-for-sale securities -

Net loss from trading of held-to-maturity securities '
Loss from trading of held-to-maturity securities

Net gain from trading of investment securities
Net income from other activities
Income from other activities

Collection of debts written off in prior years
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

Other income

Income from other activities

Expenses for other activities
Payment for social activities -
Expenses for disposals of assets
- Other expenses

Expenées for other activities

2017

2018 |
VND million = VND million
- (Reclassified)
309,188 23,164
(31,307) (23,225)
277,881 61
- 1,111
- 1;_111
277,881 1,050
2018 2017
'VND million  VND million
61,339 16912
84,387 339,399
105,408 3,667
251,134 359,978
6,618 7,387,
12,802 165,533
101,653 49,566
121,073 222,486
130,061

137,492
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31.

32.
(a)

(b)

(e)

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vletnam

- Notes to the consolidated financial statements
" for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Opérating expenses

Tax, duties and fees

Expenses for employees

Expenses on assets

In which:

Depreciation of fixed assets

Administration expenses

Insurance fee for customers’ deposits

(Reversal)/addition of allowance for diminution in the value of

‘other long-term equity investments

Income tax

Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Current tax expense
Current year

. Form BO5/TCTD-HN
(Issued under Circular No.4972014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Tax at the Bank’s tax rate

Effect of different tax rates in subsidiaries
Tax exempt income

Non-deductible expenses

Appllcable tax rate

the State Bank of Vietmam)
2018 7 -
VYND million VYND million
{Reclassified)
44,573 28,134
1,836,453 1,566,067
424,756 408,687
113,073 116,641
737,973 478,481
184,838 143,148
(5,802) 5,341
3,222,791 2,629,858
2018 - 2017
VND million VND million@
421,534 386,183
2018 2017
VYND million VND million
2,093,853 1,925.311
418,771 385,062
3,000 041
(440) (563)
203 743
421,534 386,183

. The usual income tax rate apphcable to the Bank 1s 20% for the year 2018 (2017: 20%).
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

33. Basic earnings per share

{i)  Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Net profit attributable (o ordinary shareholders for the year

(i)

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning
of the year
Effect of shares issued to pay dividends in 2018

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the year

(iii) Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share

Form BO5S/TCTD-HN

(Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Vietnam)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2018

1,119,192,914
83,927,010

2018 2017
VND million VND million
1,672,319 1,539,128
2017 2017
{as restated)  (as previously
reported)

1,119,192,914
83,927,010

1,119,192,914

1,203,119,924

1,203,119.924

1,119,192.914

2018

1,350

2017
{as restated)

VND

1,279

2017
(as previously
reported)
VND

1,375
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o Séigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Daoe, Hoan Kiern District, Hanoi, Vietnam
_ Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Form BO5/TCTD-HN
{Issied under Circular No 49/2014-TT-NHNN
] " dated 31 December 2014 of

" . for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

34,

35.

Cash and cash equivalents

the State Bank of Vietnam)

- 31/12/2018

31/12/2017

17.58

VND million VND million
Cash on hand and gold 1,884,822 1,446,548
Balances with the State Banks. 4,328,739 3,742,659
Current accounts at other credit institmions (*CIs™) . 24,708,324 20,812,077
. Deposits at other Cls with original term not exceeclmg 3 :
: months : 4,044,546 7.047.433
34,966,431 33,048,717
Employee benefits -
2018 2017
VND million VND million
Number of employees (person) 7,546 '6,402
Employees’ income 1,591,711 - 1,356,709.
Average monthly income (VND rnillionf’persoﬁ;‘month) 17.66
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36.

_.Saigon - Hanei Joint Stock Commercial Bank
-No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanei, Vietnam

for the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued)

{Issued under Circular No.49/2014- TT-NHNN :
dated 3] December 2014 of

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
the State Bank of Vietmani)

Significant transactions with related parties

. In the normal course of bankmg business, SHB carries out transactions w1th related parties. The terms

of these transactions are in accordance with SHB's regulations.

Bala_nces of significant transactions with related parties at year end were as follows:

Balance as at

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

_"Major shareholders

T&T Group Joint Stock Company

*  Capital contribution (1,199,768)

*  Demand deposits (112,476) (979,364)

» Loans granted - (779) (19,4324;)
Other long-term investments

Sai Gon - Hanoi Insurance Corporation o .

* Capital contribution ' 42,857 42,857
*- Demand deposits (184,931) (151,100)
»  Accrued interest payable for deposits (4,339) (6,892) -

31/12/2017

31/12/2018
VND million VYND mllllon. :
Assets/ Assets/ .
(Liabilities and  (Liabilities and

owner’s equity)

owner’s equity)

- (1,199,768)
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Form BOSTCTD-HN

(Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of

the State Bank of Vietnam)

Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hean Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the vear ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

37.

Obligations to the State Budget

Year ended 31 December 2018

1/1/2018 Incurred during the year 3V/12/2018
Payable Increase Decrease Payable
VND million VND million VND million VYND million
Corporate income tax 178,226 421,534 (377,831 221,929
Value added tax 43,051 91,569 {98,708) 35,912
Other taxes 8,236 120,177 (110,257) 18,156
229,513 633,280 (586,796) 275,997
Year ended 31 December 2017
1/1/2017 Incurred during the vear 31/12/2017
Payable Increase Decrease Payable
VYND million VND miillion VND million VYND million
Corporate income tax 60,315 386,183 (268,272) 178,226
Value added tax 41,801 - 133,870 {132,620) 43,051
Other taxes 15,126 33,449 (40,339) 8,236
117,242 553,502 (441,231) 229,513

2 o \eit
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

38. Segment reporting

Geographical segment reporfing

Year ended 31 December 2018

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Net gain from trading of foreign currencies

Net gain from investment securities

Net gain from other activities

Income from capital contribution, share purchase
Operaling expenses

Net operating profit before allowance and
provision expenses

Allowance and provision expenses

Profit before tax

Form BO5/TCTD-HN
(Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam)

The North The Central The South Foreign countries Total
VYND million ¥ND million VND million VYND million VND million

3,458,058 1,334,514 467,737 295,593 5,555,902
628,514 30,115 7,374 47,939 713,942
48,790 11,285 1,973 (301) 61,747
271,881 - - - 277,881

06,062 17,358 13,102 3,539 130,061

2,202 - - - 2,202
(2,340,400 (526,143) (234,860 (121,379) (3,222,791)
2,171,098 867,129 255,326 225,391 3,518,944
(882,739) (346,077 (131,589) ] (64,686) (1,425,091)
1,288,359 521,052 123,737 160,705 2,093,853




o FDI’I‘II BOS/TCTD-HN
{Issued under Circnlar No.49722014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam)

: Saigon Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued)

The South Foreign countries Total

As at 31 December 2018  The North " The Central
' VND million VYND million VND million VND million _ VND million
Cash and gbld on haﬁd 1,393,986 312,010 120,785 58,041 . "1,884,822
Balances with the State Banks 3,309,766 3,751 7,336 1,007,886 4,328,739
](?‘zg?;(’:)es with and loans to othcr credlt 1nst1tut1Qns 27.720.267 2118 1,295 1,576,647 ' 20300327
~Trading securities 655 - - - 655

Derivatives and other financial assets 58,228 - _ - - 58,228 -
Loans to customers 152,993,732 35,823,078 17,593,353 7,576,489 213,986,652
Investment securities 48,026,925 - : - - - 48,026,925

.. Long-term investmenits 195,767 - - - 195,767
Fixed assels 4,704,915 45,207 20,600 21,712 4,792 434
Other assets - 13,277,218 6,178,594 1,124,881 120,766 20,701,459
Total assets 251,681,459 42,364,758 . 18,868,250 10,361,541 323,276,008

_ Ambunts due to the Govci‘nm.ent and the State Banks 12,211,237 - .- - 12,211,237

_ ‘Deposits and borrowings from othet Cls 38,642,439 _ 56 _ 1,495 6,289,799 44,933,789
Deposits {rom customers: _ 170,541,669 39,841,455 13,670,266 1,170,751 225,224,141
Other borrowed and entrusted funds - 1,473,711 - - ' - 1,473,711
Valuable papers issued 13,018,242 1,037,438 2,666,056 S 16,721,736
Other liabilities 3,612312 764,759 356,696 1,645,095 6,378,862

. Total liahi]ities © 239,499,610 41,643,708 1 6‘,694,5'13 _ - 0,105,645 306,943,476




Saigon Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

. No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated fi nanelal statements for the year ended 3 December 2018 (eontmued) '

Year ended 31 December 2017

Net interest income
Net fee and commission income
Net gain from trading of foreign currencies -
Net loss from trading securities
Net gain from investment securities
" Net other income/{expenses)
Income from capital contribution, share pu rchase
Operating expenses -

Net operating profit before allowance and
provision expenses

Allowance and provision expenses

Profit before tax

Form BOS!'T CTD-HN-

(Is.sued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN

- dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Viemam)

" The North The Central The South Foreign countries Total
VND million "¥YND million VND million VYND million VND million
3,077,240 486,679 906,459 326,282 4,796,660
1,409,160 2,701 17,918 27,086 1,456,865
42 067 1,672 8,928 1,580 54,247
{5,188) - - - - (5,188)
1,050 - - : . 1,050
131,274 165 7.863 o (1LB1DY 137,492
2,816 - - ' - 2,816
(1,843, 471) (204,175 472,159y (110,053) - (2,629,858)
2,814,948 287,042 469,009 243,085 3,814,084
(1,698,798) (33,5000 (105,338) (51,137 - (1,888,773)
1,116,150 253,542 363,671 191,948 1,925,311
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued}

As at 31 December 2017

Cash and gold on hand

Balances with the State Banks
Balances with and loans to other Cls
Trading securities

Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and advances to custorners
Investment securities

Long-term investments

Fixed assets

Other assets

Total assets

Amounts due 1o the Government and the State Banks
Deposits and borrowings from other Cls

Deposits from customers

Other borrowed and entrusted funds
Valuable papers issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

{Issued under Circular No.d49/2014-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of the Stare Bank of Vietam}

The North The Central The South Foreign countries Total

VYND million VYND million VYND million VND million VYND million
1,014,234 118,504 263,960 49,850 1,446,548
2,961,064 3,736 6,159 771,700 3.742,659
32,482,469 1,441 613 1,028,993 33,513,516
1,050 - - - 1,050
136,265 - - - 136,265
139,157,737 17,376,168 33,246,647 5,660,599 195,441,551
21,206,594 - - 1,370 21,207,964
215,465 - - - 215,465
3,887,117 15,405 28,600 21,195 3,952,317
23,584,928 228476 1,771,415 767,927 26,352,746
224,646,923 17,743,730 35,317,394 3,302,034 286,010,081
2,758,343 - - - 2,758,343
52,614,651 543 38 385,187 53,000,419
146,056,773 13,740,270 34,382,130 710,597 194,889,770
1,064,161 - - - 1,064,161
12,291,520 2,654,299 21,450 - 14,967,269
3,745,073 274,427 550,107 69,292 4,638,899
218,530,521 16,669,539 34,953,725 1,165,076 271,318,861
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Saigon - Hanm Joint Stock Commercial Bank

‘No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hean Kiem District, Hanoi, Vletnam

Notes to the consohdated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued)

" - Business segments

Year ended 31 December 2018
Revenue

As at 31 December 2018
Segment assets
Allocated assets

Total assets

_ Segmént liabilities
Allocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Year ended 31 December 2017
Revenue

As at 31 December 2017
Segment assets
Allocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Allocated liabilities -

Total liabilities

Form BOS/TCTD-HN

{Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN-

duted 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam +

(628.834)

Credit Investment Services Treasury | Total .
VND million ~ VYND million VND million VYND miillion VND million -
19,775,398 2,789,181 495,869 996,8?1 74,057,319
222,664.,.611 ' 50,338,997 224 536 35,791,387 - | 309,019,531
6,876,514 60,715 2,820,233 4,499,015_- : 14,256,477
229,541,125 50,399,712 3044769 40,290,402 323,276,008 -
(408,430) - (94,370) (305,667,212) (306,170,012)
(373,487) (3,291) - (152,850) (243,830) (773,464)
- (781,917) - (3,291) {(247,220) (305,911,048) (306,943,476)
16,686,686 1,192,497 435,877 1,844,227 20,159,287
208,722,772 23,430,203 165,767 33,943,598 266,262,340 .
7,825,912 . 45,120 4,216,239 7,660,470 19,747,741
216,548,684 23,475,323 4,382,006 41,604,068 286,010,081
(393,624) . (103,677) (270,228 036) (270,725,337
(235,210) (1,356) {126,721) (230,237) (593,524)
(1,356'.) (230,398) (270,458,273) (271,318,861)
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(a)

*- Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BO5/TCTD-HN
'No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam  (Issued under Circudar No.49/2014-TT- NHNN

Notes to the conselidated financial statements _ - (dated 31 D ;“”:ber‘fm 4 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) _ . the Siie Bank of :e_mw;n)

Financial risk management

“This section prowdes information of SHB’s exposure to risk and describes the policies, the methods

used by management to control risk. The most important types of financial risk to which SHB is
exposed are credit risk, liquidity rlsk and market risk.

Risk management policy for financial instruments

SHB's orientation is to become a diversified financial group. Therefore, the use of financial
instruments, including funding from customers (in terms of deposit products and valuable papers
issued) and investments in high guality financial assets have become key activities to help SHB gain
necessary interest rate gaps. From the risk management perspective, SHB is required to maintain the
structure of assets, liabilities and equity (including balance sheet iterns and off-balance sheet items)
for the purpose of ensuring safety and mitigating risks in banking activities. In addition, SHB has

.~ invested in securities or granted credit facilities to other banks. The risks related to currency: and

interest rates have been managed through applying of position limits to restrict over-concentration a.nd
simultaneously participating in activities with balancing impact to minimise risks. By holding various
assets being high quality financial instruments, the stracture of SHB's consolidated balance sheet is
able to protect SHB from significant risks during its business processes and ensure liquidity. In
addition, SHB has been also involved in many hedging transactions related to financial mstruments
such as fore1gn currency swaps for the purpose of managing interest rate risk.

In the process of credit risk management SHE has adopted the Credit Handbook Wh]Ch prov1des in
details the lending policies and procedures as well as implementation guldance on standardization of
SHB’s credit activities. Liquidity risk is limited by holding appropriate amounts of cash and cash
equivalents as Nostro accounts, term deposits at the SBV and other credit institutions and valuable
papers. The safety ratios with risk factors taken into account are also used to manage liquidity risk.

' SHB has regularly assessed interest rate gaps, compared to the gaps of domestic markets and

(b)

international markets to make timely adjustments. In addition, the application of internal risfk
management processes has become more efficient owing to the deployment of Centralised Capital
Management System and Centralised Payment System in which all capital and payment transactions
of SHB are executed by the Head Office. Such centralisation has also helped SHB to monitor capital
movements more effectively and reduce any possible errors and unnecessarily complicated procedures. '

Credit risk

- SHB 1s eub_]eet to credit risk through its lending, investing activities and in cases where it acts as an
_intermediary on behalf of customers or other third parties or issues guarantees. The risk that

counterparties might default on their obligations is monitored on-an ongoing basis. SHB’s prlmary
exposure (o credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this

‘regard is reflected by the carrying amounts of the assets on the consolidated balance sheet. In addition,

SHB is exposed to off balance sheet ered1t risk through commltmentq to extend credit and guarantees '

_issued.

SHB has maintained a credit rlsk management policy to ensure the followmg basic principles dre
complied with: -

. Establishing an appropriate environment for credit risk management;

., Operating in accordance with a healthy credit granting process;

. Maintaining an appropriate credit management, measurement and monitoring process; and
»  Ensuring proper controls over credit risk.
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TCTD-HN
No. 77 Tran Hung Daoc, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 13" December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) the State Bank of Viemam)

SHB approves credit facilities through various levels to ensure that each credit is considered
independently; concurrently, the approval of the loan is made on the basis of the credit limit assigned
to each authorisation level. Besides, the credit approval model of SHB is maintained with the
involvement of the Credit Committee to ensure centralised credit approval with the highest quality. -

SHB is using the internal credit rating system which has been approved by the SBV as a management
tool to control credit risk, according to which each customer is classified in a level of risk. The level
of risk may be modified and updated frequently. Data and results of customer rating across the system
are controlled and centrally managed at the Head Office. This is the basis for credit granting and
provision of services to customers as well as making allowance for credit risk in accordance with
regulations,

Financial assets that are overdue but not impaired

Financial assets that are overdue but not impaired mainly comprise loans and advances to customers
classified by SHB in Group 2 to Group 5 and overdue receivables under Circular 02 and Circular 09
that have sufficient collateral, including real estate, valuable papers and other collateral.

The maximum exposure to credit risk on balance sheet of SHB, excluding collaterals or credit support
was as follows:
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Saigon - Hanbi Joint Stock. Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vieitnam '
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contlnued}

Asat 31 Decemher_2018
{VND million)

Balances with the State Banks

Balances with and loans to other Cls - net ~

Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and advances to customers - net
Investment securities - net '
‘Other financial assets - net

As at 31 December 2017
. (VND million)

Balances with the State Banks

Balances with and loans to other Cls - net
Derivative financial instruments

Loans and advances to customers - net
Investment securities - net

Other financial assets - nel

Neither

Past due but not impaired

Form BOS/TCTD-HN
(hsued under Circular No.49/20 14-TT-NHNN

dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam)

overdue nor Overdue Overdue Overdue Impaired Td tal
impaired - Overdue from from 91t0 from181to  more than pe _
P 101090 days 180 days 360days 360 days
4,328,739 - - - - - .4,328,739
29,300,327 - - - - - 29,300,327
58,228 - - - N 58,228
205,315,165 3,733,699 50,339 - 444,088 1,362,465 - 3,080,896 213,986,652
47,951,362 - - - Co- - - 75,000 48,026,362
19,379,429 - - - - 1,322,030 20,70’1,459
- 306,333,250 .3,733,699 50,339 444,088_ 1,362,465 4,477,926 3.16,4021,?6?
" Neither Past due but not impaired
overdue nor ' Overdue Overdue Overdue Impaired - Total
impaired Overdue from from 91to ~ from 181 to more than P : .
P 10 to 90 days 180 days 360 days 360 days
3,742,659 - - - - - 3,742,659
- 33,513,516, - - - - - 33,513,516
: 136,265 - - - - - 136,265
- 187,749,764 2,891,516 496,370 142,811 551,608 3,609,482 195,441,551
21,059,723 - ' - - - 147,544 21,207,267
24,812,837 - - - - ' _1,539,9(}9 26,352,746
271,014,764 2,891,—516.. 496,370 142 811 551,608 5,296,935 _ 280,3.94,004
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank ' ' Form BOS/TCTD-HN .
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.45/2014-TT- NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements , : ' dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) . T the Stare Bank of V‘em“‘-"‘f?)_'

De_taile of collateral held by SHB at the year-end were as follows:

31122018 317122017

- VND million  VND million

Real estates - S 237,861,232 180,743,103
Movable assets - I ' 17,927,216 44,428,824

Valuable papers - _ ' B 31,937,732 31,913,273

Other collaterals o _ 0 293913,685 228,243,002

581,639,865 485,328,204

qumdlty rlsk

Liqudity risk arises in the general fundmg of SHR’s activities and in the management of posmons It

includes both the risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of
being unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame :

SHB adopts a risk measurement method that is appropriate to its operation scale and the avai]abilitfy
of the information system, ensuring meeting the requirements for the risk mitigation, It includes

* indicators related to cash flows, ability of capital mobilisation, and ability of asset liquidity of SHB.’

SHB also establishes and applies a limit system and decision authority at each level based on results
of risk measurement for each category. :

The followmg table provides an analysm of the assets and labilities of SHB in terms of relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to repayment date. In

- practice, the actual maturity of assets or liabilities may differ frorn contractual terms based on the

addenda to the contracts which may exist.
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TCTD-HN -

- No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietham - dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of -

{Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN )

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued) Vietmam)
As at 31 December 2018 Overdue Not overdue
_ (VND million) Overdue less Overdue Uptol Fromlto3 From3t012 Fromlt5 OverS5years Total
_than 3 months more than 3 month months - months - years ' ' .
months
Assets
Cash and gold on hand - - 1,884,822 - - - - 1,884,822
Balanccs with the State Banks - - 4,328,739 - - - - 4,328,739
Balances with and loans to other Cls - - _ ) o I i
gross - - - 26,651,510 2,304,920 343,891 - - - 29,300,327
Derivative financial instruments - - (28,512} 25,230 61,510 - - 58,228
Securities held for trading - gross - - 3,889 - - - - 3,889
Loans and advances to customers - T _ . ' . .
£TOSS 2,820,131 7077328 21,823,759 23,323,406 62,087,275 . 61,779,487 38,077,495 216,928,381
Investment sccurities - gross 150,006 - 2,730,375 351,722 18,005,343 . 16,889,432 11,827,073 49,954,145
" Long-term investments - - , - ' - _ - - 201,750 201,750
Fixed assets - - 1,606,475 214 17,162 - 199,842 2,968,741 4,792,434
Other assets - gross 1,840,891 - 13,165,334 2,545,626 3,542,254 256,323 4,247 21,354,675
4,811,002 7,077,328 72,166,397 28,551,118 84057635 79,125,084 53,079,306 328,867,890
Liabilities =~
Amounts due o the Government and ; : .
" the State Banks - - 9,434,607 . 2,200,119 576,511 - - 12,211,237
Deposits and borrowings from other . ' ' o ' : : .
Cls : - - 32,106,273 8,210,803 . 4,153,755 376,565 86,393 44,933,789
Deposits from customers - - 63,971,458 47,612,876 94,957,386 16,679,022 3,399 225,224,141
Other borrowed and entrusted. funds . - - 10,159 25,199 131,595 641,165 665,593 1473711
Valuablc papers issued - - - ~ 600,000 7,047,099 2,049,454 7,025,183 16,721,736
Other liabiliiies - - 6,378,862 - - - ' - 6,378,862
- - 113,901,359 58,648,997 106,866,346 19,746,206 7,780,568 306,943,476
Net liguidity gzap 4,811,022 7,077,328 (41,734,962) (30,097,879} (22,808,711) 59,378,878 45,298,738 21,924,414
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Form BOS/TCTD-HN ~
{Issued under Circular No 49/2014-TT-NHNN -
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of

‘Saigon - Hanei Joint Stock Cnmmerclal Bank
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vletnam : '
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended' 31 December 2018 (continued)

Vietnani)
As at 31 _December 2017 Overdne - Not overdue '
“(VND million) Overdue less Overdue Uptol From1to3 From3tol2 Fromlte5 Over 5 Total
: ' than 3 months more than 3 “month months . months - years years
-months S
Assets
Cash and gold on hand - - - 1,446,548 - - - - 1,446,548
‘Balances with lhc_Slatc Banks _ - - 3,742,659 - - - - 3,742,659
Balances with and loans to other Cls - gross - - 24,430,584 5,056,692 4,026,240 - - 33,513,516
Denvatives and other linancial assets - - - 136,265 - - - - 136,265
Securities held for trading - gross - - 3,889 - - - - - 3,889
Loans and advances to customers - : o : . : _ ' o
gross 4,623,697 3,298,174 17,663,184 . 17,537,801 01,711,683 59,586,956 33,869,071 . 198,290,566
Investment securities - gross 150,000 - 33,599 - 2,489,040 - 13,557,463 6,721,106 22,951,210
Long-term investmcnils - - - - - - 227,250 227,250
~ Fixed assets - - - 811,584 2,342 - 15,491 153,589 2,969,311 3,952,317
Orher assets - gross 3,626,455 721 16,204,082 1,875,293 4,761,060 286,886 8.623 26,763,120
8,400,152 3,298,895 - 64,472,394 24,472,128 73,003,514 73,584,896 43,795,361 291,027,340
Liabilities . :
Amounts due to the Government .
and the State Banks - - - 2,758,343 - : - - .- 2,758,343
Deposits and borrowings [rom other Cls - - 35,053,542 11,407,248 6,257,516 261,492 20,321 - 53,000,419
Deposits from customers - - 62,362,701 42,185,113 £3,890,973 6,447,810 3,173 194,889,770
Other borrowed and entrusted [unds - - 6,882 27,856 105,430 456,246 467,747 1,064,161
_ Valuable papers issued - - - - ' 11,744,000 - 3,223,269 14,967,269
- Other liabilities: - - 4,638,899 - - - ' . 4,638,899
- - 104,820,667 53,620,217 101,997,919 7,165,548 - 3,714510 271,318,861
Net liquidity gap 8,400,152 3.298.895 {40,348,273) (29,143,089)  (28,994,405) 66,419,348 40,080,851 19,708,479
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TCTD-EN
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietham {Issued under Circular No 49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continned) the State Bank of Vieinam)

Market risks

Interest rate risk

SHR’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature at different times or in differing amounts. Some assets

liabilities.

SHB adopts a currency risk measurement method for all assets - liabilities items with respect to interest
income. SHB also establishes and applies a limit system and decision authority at each level based on
results of risk measurement for each category.

The following tables show SHB’s assets and liabilities categorised by the contractual re-pricing or
maturity date and the effective interest rates at the balance sheet date.

Time limit for repricing of effective interest rates is the remaining period from the end of the
accounting period to the most recent repricing of effective interest rates of assets and equity items.
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- No, 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vletnam

Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued)

As at 31 December 2018

From1 to

Form BOS/TCTD-HN
(Issued under Circular No 49/2014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of Vietnam}

Total

(43,136,350)

Overdue Free of Uptol From1te3 From3to6 Fromé6tol2 Over 5 years
(VND million) : interest month months months _ months 5 years '
Assets . S ' ' '
Cash and gold on hand - 1,884,822 - - - - - 1,884,822
Ralances with the State Banks S - 4,328,739 - - - - - 4,328,739 -
Balances with and loans to ' :
other Cls - gross ' - - 26,651,516~ 2,304,920 142,987 200,904 - - 29,300,327
Derivatives and other _ ' '
financial assets - 58,228 - - - - - - 58,228
Securities held for trading - :
gross . ' : - 3,880 - - - - - - 3,889 -
Loans and advances fo _ : o
. cuslomers - gross 0897459 . - 69,052,932 114,678,896 10,900,594 7,415,620 3,929,488 1,113,892 216,988,881
Investment securities - gross 150,000 9,294,442 3,337,088 6,749,144 4,007,774 0,025,471 7,545,840 9,844,386 49,954,145
Long-term investments - 201,750 - - - - L - .- 201,750
Fixed assets . _ - 4,792,434 - - - - - - 4,792,434
Other assets - gross 1,340,891 13,423,312 144,830 2,250,608 3,263,881 424,619 6,034 - 21,354,675
11,888,350 29,659,377 103,515,105 125,983,568 18,315,236 17,066,614 11,481,362 10,958,278 328,867,890
Liabilities
Amounts dug to the Governmcm S : .
and the State Banks .- - 10,211,237 .~ 2,000,000 - . - - 12,211,237
Deposits and borrowings from _ .
other Cls - 32,102,335 8,826,390 3,405,701 387,159 8,154, 3,450 44,933,789
Deposits from customers - - 65,971,459 47,612,876 52,498,826 © - 43,718,971 15,418,610 3399 225224141
Other borrowed and éntrusted . ; ' ' L -
funds C o : - - - 1,330,584 S - = 143,127 S - 1,473,711
Valuable papers lssued - - - 600,000 /5,547,099 1,500,000 3,050,009 6,024,628 .. 16,721,736
Other liabilitics - 6,378,862 - - - - - - 6,378,862
- 6,378,862 108285031 - 60,369,850 61,451,626 45,806,730 18,619,900 6,031,477 306,943,476
Interest sensitivity gap 11,888,350 23,280,515 (4,769,926) 65,613,718 . (28,740,116) (7,138,538) 4,926,801 21,924,414
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Salgon Hanoi Jomt Stock Commerclal Bank _
No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued)

Form B0S/TCTD-HN

- (Issued under Circular No.492014-TT-NHNN

_dared 31 Deceniber 2014 of the Siate Bank of Vietnam}

" Interest sensitivity gap

As at 31 December 2017 Overdue Free of Uptol  Fromlte3 From3to6 From6to From1lte Over 5 years Total
{VND mllhon) interest month maonths months 12 months 5 years
Assets _ _ : : . _
Cash and gold on hand - - 1,446,548 _ oo- - - - - - 1,446,548
- Balances with the State Banks : - - 3,742,659 - - - - - 3,742,659
Balances with and foans to L _ ' : 5 _
other CIs - gross - - 24,430,584 . 5,056,692 3,958,965 67,275 - - 33,513,516
Derivatives and other ' o : ' ' S
. financial asscts ' - - 136,265 - - - - - - 136,265
. Securities held for wading -- . :
©ogross . - . - 3,889 - - . : - : - - 3,889

" Loans and advances to . ' . _ : 17,485,187 13,213,372 7,573,437 754,599 '
customers - gross 7,921,871 - 63,617.993 87,724,107 - : 198,290,566
Investment securities - gross = 150,000 8,152,400 - 357 1099861 3,789,029 7.083,406 2,676,148 . 22,951,210
Long-term investments e 227,250 - - - - - - 227,250
Fixed assets . - 3,952,317 - - - - - - 3,952,317
Other assets - gross 3,627,176 23,135.944 - - - - - - 26,763,120

11,699,047  37.054,622 91,791,236 92,781,156 22,544,013 17,069,676 14,656,243 ©3430,747 291,027,340
- Liabilities
Amounts due to the Government . _
and the State Banks - - - 2,758,343 - - - - - 2,758,343

. Deposits and borrowings ' ' ' o . : _

* from other Cls ' . - - 35925253 11,599,233 5137570 332474 2,047 3,842 53,000,419
Deposiis from customers ' - - 62,362,701 42,185,113 43,709,958 40,181,015 6,447,810 3,173 194,889,770
Other borrowed and emrusted : S
funds : - - - - 1,061,995 - 2,166 S 1,064,161
Valuable papers issued - Y - - - - 5,185,000 6,559,000 1,000,634 2,222,635 14,967,269
Other liabilities : - 4,638,899 - - - - - - 4,638,899

- 4,638,899 101,046,297 53,784,346 - 55,094,523 47,072,489 7.452,657 2,229,650 271,318,861
11,699,047 32,415,723 (9,255,061) 38,996,810 (32,550,510  (30,002,813) 7,204,186 1,201,097 19,708,479
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BOS/TCTD-HN

" No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam f Issued under Circular No.49%/2014-TT-NHNN

Notes to the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2014 of
~ for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) ' ' - the State Bank of Vietnam)
Currency risk

‘Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument fluctuates due to changes in foreign

exchange rates. SHB was incorporated and operates in Vietnam, with Vietnamese Dong as its reporting
currency. The major currency in which SHB transacts is Vietnamese Dong. SHB’s loans and advances
were mainly denominated in Vietnamese Dong and United States Dollar. However, some of SHB's

-other assets are in currencies other than Vietnamese Dong and United States Dollar. SHB’s management

has set limits on positions by currency based on the internal risk assessment system of SHB and -
regulations of the SBV. Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedgmg qtrategleq used to ensure
pOblthl’lS are mamtamed within established 11n11ts
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Saigon - ﬁanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued)

Asat3l December 2018

(VND miillion}

Assets

Cash and gold on hand

Balances with the State Banks

Balances with and loans to other Cls - gross
Derivatives and other financial liabilities
Securitics held for trading - gross

Loans and advances to customers - gross
Investment securities - gross

Long-term investments

Fixed assets '

Other assets - gross

Liabilities

Amounts due to the Government and the State Banks
Deposits and borrowings from other Cls

_ Deposits from customers :
Derivatives and other financial liabilities -

Other borrowed and entrusted funds

Valuable papers issued

Other liabilities

FX ljosition on balance sheet

- Form BOS/TCTD-HN
{Issued under Circular No. 49/2014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of

_ Vietnant)
VND USD - EUR Other Total
' currencies
950,382 820,964 53,451 60,025 1,884,82'2.
2,750,809 1,374 839 - 203,091 4,328,739 _
27458147 1,114,908 204,369 522,903 29,300,327
2,354,997 (2,281,159 - - (15,610) 58,228
3 889 - - - - 3,889
202,642,123 13,198,420 _ 143,127 1,005,211 216,938,881
49954145 - - - 49,954,145
201,750 . ; -~ 201,750
4,770,780 13,844 - . 7,810 - 4,792,434
18,851,329 2,367,436 54,582 81,328 21,354,675
30’9,938,351 16,609,252 455,529 1,864,758 328,867,890
12,096,858 114,379 - - 12,211,237
36,242,521 8,374,572 - 316,690 44 933,789
213,952,015 10,879,492 247 221 145,413 225,224 141
1,330,534 - 143,127 - 1,473,711
16,721,736 - - ' - 16,721,736
5.316,021 985,675 - 76,566 _6,378,862
285,660,335 20,3_54,1 18 . 390,348 538,675 306,943,476
24,278,016 (3,744,:'866) 65,181 1,326,083 21,924,414
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Saigon Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

‘No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (contmued)

As at 31 December 2017
(VND million)
Assets
Cash and gold on hand
~ Balances with the State Banks
Balances with and loans to other Cls - gross
Securities held for trading - gross
Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and advances to customers - gross
- Investment securities - gross
Long-term investments
Fixed assets
Other assets - gross

Liabilities _
Amounts duc to the Government and the State Banks
Deposits and borrowings from other Cls

- Deposits from customers
Other borrowed and entrusted funds
Valuable papers issued

. Other liabilities

FX position on balance sheet

Form BO5/TCTD-HN
(fssued under Circular No.492014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of the State Bank of

_ Vie'm.f:tmj

VND UsD EUR - Other Total

: ' correncies

886,481 507,125 34,847 18,095 1,446,548
2,347.912 1,394,747 - - 3,742,659
28,574,001 4,059,295 106,368 - 773,852 33,513,516
3,889 - - - 3,889
(5,757,288) 5,607,748 95,407 190,398 136,265
183,260,221 14,318,366 18,850 693,129 198,290,560
22,951,210 S - - 22,951,210
227,250 - - - 227,250
3,931,122 16,877 - 4,318 - 3952317
17,178,351 9,530,765 40 53,904 26,763,120
253,603,149 35434923 255,512 1,733,756 291,027,340
2,758,343 ‘- - ' - 2,758,343
40,989,096 12,011,323 - - 53,000,419
181,177,390 13,374,249 251,617 86,514 194,889,770
1,061,995 - 2,166 - . 1,064,161
14,967 269 - - - 14,967,269
4,547,074 72,740 351 18,734 4,638,899
245,501,167 25,458,312 254,134 105,248 271,318,861
8,101,982 9,976,611 1,378 1,628,508 19,708,479
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Saigon - Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank Form BO5/TCTD-HN

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi, Vietnam (Issued under Circular No.49/2014-TT-NHNN
Notes to the consolidated financial statements dg’“ﬁ 31 g‘e" ‘;:”b"; 2014 of
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) the State Bank of Viemam)
Commitments

Leases

At the reporting date, the minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were:

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VND million VND million
Up to one year _ 80,287 71.770
From more than one year to five years 499,536 230,368
More than five years 167.466 82,053
747,289 384,191

Exchange rates of foreign currencies at the reporting date
The followings were the exchange rates at the reporting date applied by the Bank:

Exchange rate as at

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
VYND VNI

USD ' 23,230 22,425
EUR 26,557 27,259
GBP 29,345 30,693
CHF 23,522 23,306
JPY 210 202
SGD 16,967 16,980
AUD 16,354 17,718
HKD 2,961 2,906
CAD 17,040 18,054
LAK 2716 2.690
THB 714.4 694.6
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Form B0S/TCTD-HN
( .’ssued under Circular No.4972014-TT-NHNN
dated 31 December 2014 of
the State Bank of Vietnam)

Sﬁigon Hanoi Joint Stock Commercial Bank

No. 77 Tran Hung Dao, Hoan Kiem District, Hamnoi, Vletnam
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Corresponding figures

Certain figures in the consolidatéd statement of income as at 31 December 2017 were reclassified and
restated as follows: _ g :
31/12/2017 31/12/2017

VND million VYND million
(as previously (after

reported) reclassification)
Net gain/(loss) from trading securities 16,456 (5,18?8)

-Net (loss)/gain from investment securities _ : (12,372) 1,050
Operating expenses (2,896,897) (2,629,358)
Allowance and provision expenses (1,629,956) (1,888,773)

20 March 2019

. Prepared by: Reviewed by
Nguyen Thi Lien - Ngo Thi Van Ngo Thu Ha ~ “=" Nguyen VanLe ~ |
- Head of Accounting Chief Accountant  Deputy Executive Officer  Chief Executive Officer

and General Affairs Department
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